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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
REGISTERED NAME:

Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB)

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

5th Floor Provisus Building
523 Stanza Bopape Street
Arcadia
0083

POSTAL ADDRESS:

Private Bag X08, Arcadia, 0007

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S: 012 341 9651
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FAX NUMBER:

012 341 5938

EMAIL ADDRESS:

communication@pansalb.org.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS:

www.pansalb.org.za

EXTERNAL AUDITORS:

Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA)

BANKERS:

ABSA, Account Number: 20276398,
Branch: 130814
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

AGSA

Auditor General of South Africa

MEC

Member of Executive Council

BBBEE

Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

TR

Treasury Regulations

MTEF

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

SMME

Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises

SCM

Supply Chain Management

PLCs

Provincial Language Committees

NLUs

National Language Units

NLBs

National Language Bodies
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3. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
3.1

Vision

“A nation that acts intentionally about its mother
languages / tongues while promoting multilingualism”
We will know that this vision has been realised when:
• The majority of South Africans can be addressed in
their mother tongues;
• The majority of South Africans can speak a
minimum of three official languages, in addition to
their mother tongues;
• Customers are satisfied;
• Stakeholders are satisfied;
• PanSALB is in compliance with governance
imperatives;
• PanSALB is sustainable; and
• Employees are satisfied.

3.2

Mission

“To provide language products and services that lead to
equitable use of all South African languages including Khoi,
Nama and San Languages and Sign Language, with a
special emphasis on languages that were previously
marginalised. This will be achieved by developing,
preserving, promoting, protecting language rights, and
fostering respect for Language.”

3.3.

Values

PanSALB’s interaction with all its stakeholders is guided by
its values. The chosen values are aligned with the mandate,
enabling employees to be passionate about the mandate,
be respectful to others and other languages, and be
accountable, transparent and committed when discharging
the PanSALB mandate. These values are described in the
following table.:
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Value

Description

Demonstrated Behaviour

Respect

Showing a positive feeling of high
regard towards another or an entity

Greeting a person
Being civil to the person
Speaking to the person in a tone and
manner that acknowledges them

Accountability

Taking responsibility for one's own
actions; or an obligation to oneself

Taking responsibility for errors committed
Honouring own commitments

Integrity

Doing the right thing even when you
are not being watched

Doing what is right
Fulfilling your promises

Transparency

Disclosing information or a process
to people who are allowed to view
or access the information or process

Respecting the confidentiality of salary
information
Giving access to information to people who
should receive it

Commitment

Making an obligation to carry out
the mandate of PanSALB

Focus on PanSALB role and obligations
Rise above personal differences to make the
PanSALB mandate a priority
Be enthusiastic about your role at PanSALB;
Be determined to work hard at your duties,
at PanSALB

Passion

Exhibiting strong commitment to the
mandate of PanSALB

Go beyond the call of duty;
See yourself in your role at PanSALB;
Be energized by your role at PanSALB;
“Be like water flowing along its natural
riverbed. It actually gains energy from the
path it's taking, so you must gain energy as
you perform your role”
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4. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
Mandate as per the Constitution of the Republic
of South Africa

Mandate as per PanSALB Act No. 10 of 1999 as
amended

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act
No. 108 of 1996 (Section 6(5) (a) and (b) of the
Constitution of South Africa) (No. 29 of 1999)
mandates the establishment of the Pan South
African Languages as follows:

In terms of the Pan South African Language Board
(PanSALB) Act No. 59 of 1995, as amended, the
organisation is mandated to:
a) make recommendations with regard to any
proposed or existing legislation, practice or
policy dealing directly or indirectly with
language matters at any level of
government, and with regard to any
proposed amendments to, or the repeal or
replacement of such legislation, practice or
policy;
b) make recommendations to organs of state at
all levels of government where it considers
such action advisable for the adoption of
measures aimed at the promotion of
multilingualism within the framework of the
Constitution;
c) actively promote an awareness of
multilingualism as a national resource;
d) actively promote the development of the
previously marginalised languages;
e) initiate studies and research aimed at
promoting and creating conditions for the
development and use of (i) all the official
languages of South Africa, (ii) the Khoi and
San languages and (iii) South African Sign
Language;
f) promote and ensure respect for all other
languages commonly used by communities
in South Africa;
g) advise on the coordination of language
planning in South Africa;
h) facilitate cooperation with language planning
agencies outside South Africa;
i) establish provincial language committees
and national language bodies to advise it on
any language matter affecting a province or
a specific language; and
j) establish national lexicography units to
operate as companies limited by guarantee
under Section 21 of the Companies Act (No.
61 of 1973), and to allocate funds to the units
for the fulfilment of their functions.

A Pan South African Language Board established
by national legislation must(a) promote and create conditions for the
development and use of(i) all official languages;
(ii) the Khoi, Nama and San languages; and
(iii) sign language; and
(b) promote and ensure respect for(i) all languages commonly used by
communities in South Africa, including
German, Greek, Gujarati, Hindi,
Portuguese, Tamil, Telegu and Urdu;
(ii) Arabic, Hebrew, Sanskrit and other
languages used for religious purposes;
(iii) the promotion of multilingualism in
South Africa.

In terms of Section 4 of the PanSALB Act (No. 59 of
1995), the Board is an independent organ of state,
subject only to the Constitution and its founding
legislation, and must perform its duties without fear,
favour or prejudice. All organs of state are enjoined to
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cooperate with the Board and may not interfere with
its functioning in the execution of its mandate.
PanSALB was established in 1995 in terms of the
PanSALB Act (No. 59 of 1995), as amended in 1999.
The Board was first constituted in 1997.
The primary objective of PanSALB is to promote
multilingualism in South Africa by:
•
•
•

Creating the conditions for the development
of, and the equitable use of, all official
languages;
Fostering respect for, and encouraging the
use of, other languages in the country; and
Encouraging the best use of the country's
linguistic resources in order to enable South
Africans to free themselves from all forms of
linguistic discrimination, domination and
division and to enable them to exercise
appropriate linguistic choices for their own
wellbeing, as well as for national
development.

legislation, institutional, provincial, and national
policies. Examples of the applicable legislation and
policies are listed hereafter.
• Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of
1999;
• Public service act of 1994;
• Public service regulations 2001, as
amended;
• Department of Labour’s code of good practice
in the workplace;
• Employment equity plan;
• Fraud prevention policies;
• Practice notes issued by National Treasury,
e.g. strategic planning framework;
• Applicable General public service policies on
procurement/SCM, good governance and
best practice;

Use of Official Languages Act
The objective of the Use of Official Languages Act
No of 2012 is:
a) to regulate and monitor the use of official
languages for government purposes by
national government;
b) to promote parity of esteem and equitable
treatment of official languages of the
Republic;
c) to facilitate equitable access to services and
information of national government; and
d) to promote good language management by
national government for efficient public
service administration, and to meet the
needs of the public.
Implications of the Use of Official Languages
Act No. 12 of 2012
The implementation of the above act implies, for
PanSALB, the following:
a) PanSALB is to play an oversight role in
support of the Minister in his/her language
competence, and monitoring and
evaluation; and
b) PanSALB has to comply with the prescripts
of the Acts of government
Other Legislative and policy mandates
Policy mandates are derived from supporting

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

05

09

GENERAL INFORMATION

5. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
HIGHER LEVEL

PanSALB Board

Risk & Audit
Committee

Remuneration & HR
Committee

Language & Technical
Committee

Chief Executive
Officer

Chairperson
Forum

Board

Management

National
Language
Bodies(NLBs)
x 13

Provincial
Language
Committes(PLCs)
x9

National
Lexicography
Units (NLUs)
x 11
Language Structures
Internal Audit

and
Risk Management
(Outsourced)

Company
Secretary

Executive Head:
Languages

10

Executive Head:
Regional
Managers x3
(Vacant)

Executive Head:
Research,
Monitoring &
Evaluation
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Legal Services
(Vacant)

Executive Head:
Corporate
Services

Chief Financial
Officer
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6. EXECUTIVE

CARETAKER CEO

EXECUTIVE HEAD:
LANGUAGES

CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

Dr Nomfundo Mali

Ms Mpelegeng Myambo

EXECUTIVE HEAD:
CORPORATE SERVICES

EXECUTIVE HEAD:
REGIONAL MANAGERS

Mr Mxolisi Zwane

(Acting) EXECUTIVE HEAD:
RESEARCH, MONITORING
& EVALUATION

EXECUTIVE HEAD:
LEGAL SERVICES

Ms Karabo Mbele

Vacant

Mr Nkohla Sam Jafta

Dr Daniel Thokoane
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7. FOREWORD BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr Mxolisi Zwane - Caretaker CEO

The tabled annual report reflects on our organisation, and
how tirelessly we have worked to implement the turnaround
strategy in the financial year under review in order to
stabilise not only governance, but also our financial viability.
Our efforts to strengthen our former oversights have been
an ‘Institution Realignment’ process which we believe will
strengthen our capacity to enhance service delivery in
fulfilment of our mandate. Thus, we holistically engaged in a
democratic process of consultations with all PanSALB
structures which culminated in a strategic workshop from 01
to 03 August 2012 to identify, evaluate and understand the
Organisation's key challenges (i.e. lack of resources/funds
to improve, develop and promote language use and
multilingualism, non-collaboration with other Government
Departments, budgetary constraints, lack of synergy
between structures of PanSALB, lack of implementation and
development of multilingualism, etc.). The workshop laid the
foundation for realignment, integration and consistency of
efforts amongst and throughout structures, and in so doing
holistically encouraged debates and sought resolutions to
address the above constraints as the core basis for failing to
discharge PanSALB’s constitutional mandate.

Introduction
he Public Finance Management Act prescribes that
we table the Annual Report of the Organisation to
Parliament, among others, to comply with the
prescripts of sound corporate governance principles in
the public sector, but also to report and account on the
programmes implemented by the organisation in the
fulfilment of our constitutional mandate and other legislative
prescripts. As the custodian of language advocacy in South
Africa, we are proud to put in writing the achievements of the
Organisation for the financial year 2012/2013. We humbly
point out the challenges and limitations we have
encountered in the delivery of such mandate. The business
of language, development, use, promotion and preservation
and provision is not a complex one; however it becomes
complex when there is no collaborative effort between and
amongst our stakeholders.
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A sore point of this report remains the qualified opinion of
the Auditor General. While we have sought to address all
the issues that the Auditor-General had raised in the
previous financial year, a big challenge still remains in the
numerous governance frameworks which needed to be
aligned with our turnaround strategy, which we were
developing in the reviewed financial year. To this end we
have appointed a Business Process Re-engineering team
whose work it had been to assist in developing our
‘5-year-strategic
plan’,
accentuated
by
a
’12-month-turnaround-strategy’ to be monitored and
evaluated through ‘an annual performance plan’. Some of
the resolutions adopted in the ‘5-year-strategic-plan’ had
been the establishment of a Revenue Generation Unit with
the primary function of closing the funding gap in
furtherance to implementing the language driven initiatives,
and a Monitoring and Evaluation Unit. The Monitoring and
Evaluation Unit has been established as the Research,
Monitoring and Evaluation Unit during the first quarter of
2013. The purpose of establishing this Unit is for PanSALB
to manage the monitoring and evaluation of its corporate
strategy and the implementation of its language framework.
Furthermore, the Unit must measure success in
implementing PanSALB’s strategy and the development of
a corporate scorecard, as well as communicate the
scorecard and associated criteria. The Unit is expected to
develop and implement the monitoring and evaluation policy
framework. The language framework will monitor the
development of previously marginalised languages
including the Khoi and San languages and Sign language,
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and further monitor the compliance with the Use of Official
Languages Act No. 12 of 2012.
Even though the organisation is pleased with the
improvements in the report, the ultimate goal is an
unqualified report. A cadre of committed public servants and
partners has contributed immensely in the achievements
that are celebrated in this report, and we are grateful for
their sterling contributions. We are also grateful for the
leadership of the Ministry and Top Management in particular
for steering the vessel.
A new ethos is emerging in the linguistic field in South Africa
which requires a mindset that does not see our roles in
isolation. Our stakeholder engagements demand that we
think and work seamlessly in tandem with one another. We
dare not fail our people in that resolve!

_________________
Mr Mxolisi Zwane
Caretaker CEO
31 July 2013
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8. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
Mr Mxolisi Zwane - Caretaker CEO
OVERVIEW
A special word of appreciation is extended to all employees of PanSALB and all its structures
– National Lexicography Units, National Language Bodies and Provincial Language
Committees. In a year that has been challenging; you have performed at exceptional levels.
We had an interesting and challenging year on many fronts, a year in which we geared
ourselves up for the implementation of the Turnaround Strategy and Organizational redesign
following the disbandment of the Board. PanSALB adopted the following vision and mission.

Vision
“A nation that acts about its mother languages/tongues while promoting multilingualism”

Mission
“To provide language products and services that lead to equitable use of all South African languages including Khoi, Nama & San
and Sign Languages, with a special emphasis on languages that were previously marginalised. This will be achieved by
developing, preserving, promoting, protecting language rights and fostering respect for Language.”
We have reached the end of the 2012/2013 financial year and we have to give account of our performance. We had a
period in which we had to meet ever-increasing needs of the turnaround strategy with very limited resources. Despite the
unfavourable audit outcome, the 2012/2013 financial year has proven to be an optimistic and exciting year. It is a period
in which the reality points to the fact that good work surpasses any negativity encountered. This is due largely to the
proper planning and vigorous implementation of the programmes adopted through the turnaround strategy.

Key achievements
Despite the challenges, PanSALB has delivered an average set of results in terms of performance of financial and
non-financial indicators. In accordance with the approved Annual Performance Plan (APP) for 2012/2013 financial year,
the achievements under each strategic objective for the financial year were as follows:

14

•

Strategic Objective 1-Ensure the sustainability of PanSALB
o
Established a Revenue Generation Unit
o
Developed, revised and implemented policies

•

Strategic Objective 2-Deliver language products and services that create a conducive
environment
o
Development of Language Framework
o
Development of standard guidelines for various language domains

•

Strategic Objective 3 - Build PanSALB’s capability
o
Filled key vacant posts
o
Established a Monitoring and Evaluations Unit

•

Linguistic
Human
Strategic
Objective
4 -Rights
Create an effective service delivery Infrastructure
o
Upgraded the ICT Infrastructure

•

Strategic Objective 5 -Create awareness of language use
o
Established Language Indaba in all Provinces
o
Established Language Chairpersons forums
o
Re-established stakeholder engagements
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PanSALB has in total met 37% of its targets in the approved APP.

Challenges
Despite the achievements mentioned above, PanSALB had some challenges in achieving more. The most significant
had been underfunding which resulted in over spending of R 4,2 million. The underfunding resulted in
capacity challenges within PanSALB, including its structures. The following critical projects could not be
implemented:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Dictionary development
Hosting of Multilingualism Awards
Development of 11 dictionaries and CDs
Installation of Tshwanelex
Development of language policies through Provincial Language Committees
Increase of the establishment of reading clubs
Revision, reviewing and printing of Spelling and Autography Rules

Financial management
PanSALB has revised its policies and improved internal controls, and basis its operations on sound financial
management principles and the application of good governance best practices. The budget allocation for PanSALB
was R69 480 million, the bulk of which was allocated to compensation of employees. We projected an over spending
of over R 4.2 million as PanSALB is largely underfunded. The going concern analysis has revealed that the Strategic
Plan was significantly underfunded by 62% which impacted negatively on service delivery. Below is a break-down per
programme:
•
•
•
•
•

Dictionary Development by 77%
Linguistic Human Rights by 59%
Language Furtherance and use by 81%
Promotion and stakeholder mobilisation by 48%
Support services by 43%

Conclusion

In light of the work done and achievements attained, we are convinced that the 2012/2013 financial year has yielded
reasonable results and all our efforts are focussed on improving on this record in 2013/2014. The Organisation is
looking forward to the exciting implementation of the following projects:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Colloquium-Academic debate
Language Indabas
Verification and authentication of various language products
Development and standardisation of terminology
Awareness advocacy programmes
Community outreach programmes
Establishment of book clubs
Story telling programmes on all media platforms
Dr Neville Alexander Language Scholarship
Reconstituting Provincial Language Committees together with MECs of Arts and Culture

All of the above mentioned projects are geared towards achieving the preservation, development and promotion of all
languages and ensuring respect for all languages commonly used by communities in South Africa. When our vision is
realised majority of South Africans will be addressed in their mother tongue, they would be able to speak a minimum of
three official languages in addition to their mother tongues, employees, customers, and stakeholders are satisfied.
PanSALB will be compliant to all governance imperatives.
PanSALB endeavours to strengthen engagements with all its key stakeholders specifically in Language in Education
fraternity through the establishment of the Liaison Committee with the Department of Education.
I wish all PanSALB staff, structures and stakeholders a productive and progressive 2013/2014
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_________________
Mxolisi Zwane
Caretaker Chief Executive Officer

31 July 2013
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1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
Statement of Responsibility for Performance Information for the year ended 31 March 2013
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation of the constitutional entity’s performance
information, and for the judgements made in this information.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing, a system of internal controls
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance information.
In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the actual achievements against planned
objectives, indictors and targets as per the strategic and annual performance plan of the constitutional entity
for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.
The Pan South African Language Board’s (PanSALB) performance information for the year ended 31 March
2013 has been examined by the external auditors and their report is presented on page 50.
The performance information of the entity set out on page 17 to 30 has been approved by the Accounting
Officer. The financial statements presented on pages 70 to 123 have been prepared in accordance with the
prescribed Standards of Generally Recognized Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations,
guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board, and in the manner required by the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The financial statements include amounts based on judgments
and estimates made by management. The Accounting Officer also prepared the other information included in
the annual report, and is responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.
The audit report of the Auditor-General is presented on page 50. The financial statements have been
approved and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 July 2013.

------------------------------Mxolisi Zwane
Caretaker Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2013
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2. REPORT ON PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
The AGSA/auditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against
predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being reported under the
Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s
report.
Refer to page 53 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.
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3. OVERVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL ENTITY’S
PERFORMANCE
3.1

Service Delivery Environment

Updated Situation Analysis
PanSALB’s situation analysis summarises the development of the organisation strategy, based on the
performance
environment, referring to the external context - political, economical, social, technology,
ecological, and legal factors. Organisation environment refers to strengths, weaknesses, threats, and
opportunities affecting the organisation; and the process for strategy development.
Performance Environment
Political

PanSALB is operating in a political environment in which the people of South Africa are in transition towards a
new Democratic South Africa. Language was one of the instruments of oppression for the majority of South
Africa’s people. English and Afrikaans were the dominant languages while the other languages were suppressed.
The transition makes mother tongue and multilingualism a politically emotive matter.
Economic

The economic downturn has caused people to focus their spending on matters that are important to their survival.
Language is largely seen purely as a means of exchange of meaning. This is observable in the private sector’s
usage of translation to reach many of its clients, e.g. bank terminals have a language choice when transacting.
This implies that the business case for spending on language for individuals, business and government requires a
hard sell.
Social

The social influence of modernisation through many different media pushes for English and other western
symbols. This has relegated the balance of other languages to the bottom. In many schools, especially the
multiracial schools, only English and Afrikaans are taught. This leads to children from other social groups learning
in second or third languages. Many social services from government are delivered in English. This is a
contradiction for the many who voted the current government into power; thus implying that the task of promoting
mother tongue and multilingualism is a tall order.
Technology

Most technology is introduced in English, e.g. computers use English as a medium of exchange. However, there
are opportunities for translation into other languages. The limited levels of development of previously
marginalised languages compromises the bringing of these languages into the ambit of technology.
Ecological

The concept of ecology, in its current understanding, often has strong western origins. The meaning of many
ecological concepts are foreign to many previously marginalised languages. This brings the threat of loss of the
intended meaning in these messages; thus implying an opportunity to grow the use of previously marginalised
languages.
Legal

The legal framework is defined using languages that are foreign to previously marginalised languages. This
creates the situation where many laws are not understood by many of the transgressors. For example, taxi drivers
and owners in one province requested that their fines be written in their mother tongues. This implies that there
are many opportunities for the development of previously marginalised languages.

20
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3.2

Organisational environment

The Organisation’s Risk Register also identified Human Resources’ shortage of technical skills and a
significant vacancy rate, as well as the ageing workforce in critical positions. The lack of technical skills and
permanent executives could lead to non-compliance with legislation, Internal Controls and the Code of
Conduct as identified in the Risk register. The Organisation has embarked on a process to centralise the
training responsibility to be coordinated by Talent Management. This had been scheduled to take place
during the year under review but it has been taken forward for implementation during the 2013/14 financial
year, where all employees will be trained in line with the Workplace Skills Plan (WSP).
The Organisation reflects negatively in the execution of planned projects and programmes, resulting in failure
or delay of major projects that are critical to the service delivery programme of the Languages Unit.
The Supply Chain Management (SCM) Unit has embarked on various training interventions for both senior
managers (on procurement processes) and lower level employees. The SCM Unit is setting up systems that
will facilitate effective contract management in the organisation, and these will be undertaken in the next
financial year. Instability in the Organisation which was caused by leadership has also been identified by the
Organisational Risk Unit as an area of concern, which has been given attention via the appointment of key
Senior Managers.
During the year under review, a Caretaker Chief Executive Officer had been appointed; A new Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), an Executive Head of Legal and an Executive Head of Corporate Services were appointed on
twelve month contracts.
The majority of the members of Top Management required include the:
• Appointing of an ICT manager
• Appointing of an ICT officer
• Appointing of a hardware service provider tending to all hardware being overhauled
• Improved SLA levels on all ICT related fields, as steps are being taken to stabilise the situation by
appointing the Top Management Team.

3.3

Key policy developments and legislative changes

PanSALB was established in 1995 in terms of the PanSALB Act (No. 59 of 1995), as amended in 1999. The
Board was first constituted in 1997. The primary objective of PanSALB is to promote multilingualism in South
Africa by:
•
•
•

Creating the conditions for the development of, and the equitable use of, all official languages;
Fostering respect for, and encouraging the use of, other languages in the country; and
Encouraging the best use of the country's linguistic resources in order to enable South Africans to
free themselves from all forms of linguistic discrimination, domination and division and to enable
them to exercise appropriate linguistic choices for their own well-being, as well as for national
development.

Other Legislative and policy mandates
Policy mandates are derived from supporting legislation, institutional, provincial, and national policies.
Examples of the applicable legislation and policies are listed hereafter.
•
•
•
•
•

Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999;
Public service act of 1994;
Public service regulations 2001, as amended;
Department of Labour’s code of good practice in the workplace;
Employment equity plan;

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

05

21

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

•
•
•
•
•

Fraud prevention policies;
Practice notes issued by National Treasury, e.g. strategic planning framework;
Applicable General public service policies on procurement/SCM, good governance and best practice;
King III Report on Corporate Governance; and
Legal and regulatory Imperatives for PanSALB functional areas.

Companies Act 71 of 2008
NLUs Governing Documents must comply with the Companies’ Act 2008 (July 3013). Section 21 Companies will
be referred to as non-profit companies and will have the expression NPC on their registration documents.
Pre-existing Companies may file within two years of the general effective date of the new Act (without Charge),
an amendment of its MOI to harmonise it with the Act, and if necessary change their names to comply with the
Act.
Financial reporting of NLU’s must be amended so that we can have integrated reporting and disclosure as
directed by the KING III Practice Note; (e.g. NLU’s are required to use the IFRS (International Financial Reporting
System) and PanSALB is using GRAP (General Recognised Accounting Practices).
Policies
Cellphone and Data Card Policies
The policies have been implemented. The said policies regulate the distribution and usage of
telecommunications devices.
These policies introduce the requirements that all the items procured must be insured.
Access to information Act
The Act requires the Institution to appoint information officers.
The said officers have not been appointed.
Job Evaluation Policy
This was amended to reflect the Strategic Objectives for 2012/13 and to accommodate new job profiles.
There are no other changes to other legislations or policies during this period under review.
Use of Official Languages Act of 2012
The objectives of the use of Official Languages Act No. 2012 are:
a) to regulate and monitor the use of official languages for government purposes by national government;
b) to promote parity of esteem and equitable treatment of official languages of the Republic;
c) to facilitate equitable access to services and information of national government; and
d) to promote good language management by national government for efficient public service
administration and to meet the needs of the public.
Implications of the Use of Official Languages Act of 2012
The implementation of the above act implies, for PanSALB, the following:
a) PanSALB is to play an supervisory role in support of the Minister in his/her language competence and
monitoring and evaluation, and
b) PanSALB has to comply with the prescripts of the Acts of Government.
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Strategic
objectives

Output

Key
Performance
Indicator

Measures

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

Reported
Performance

Reestablishment
of accounting
authority

Appointed
Board
members

Coordinated
oversight
structure
established

Average
Budget
variance from
allocation
within 5%.

Budget
variance

+/-5%

Not Achieved

PanSALB envisaged over
expenditure of over R4 million in
the 2012/13 financial year, due
to the Implementation of the
Turn Around strategy which was
not funded.

Key
Performance
Indicator

Measures

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

Reported
Performance

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)

Actual
Partially Achieved

Compliant to
Ensure
the Governance
sustainability
and
management
of PanSALB
structure

Stable financial
environment

Strategic
objectives

Output

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)
The Board is appointed by the
Portfolio Committee of Arts &
Culture. The Portfolio Committee
(PC) on Arts and Culture has
scheduled interviews to shortlist
candidates for the PanSALB Board
on 30 April, from 9:30 - 16:00. On 1
May and 2 May, from 9:30 - 16:00,
the PC will deliberate on the
outcomes of the interview process.
On 3 May, from 9:30 - 16:00, the
PC has finalised the shortlist of
candidates and commenced with
the process of interviews, the
successful candidates will be
approved
by
the
National
Assembly.

Actual

Compliance to
governance
imperatives

Approved
policies

Adherence to
PFMA & NTR,
GRAP, IFRS
Procurement
Processes

Audit opinion

Unqualified audit

Not Achieved

Final Audit with the verdict will
be determined in the next
financial year.

Internal audit
opinion

Compliance with
internal Audit
recommendations
and opinion

Partially Achieved

All approved and revised
finance policies were reviewed
by Internal Audit.

Developed
Polices.
Implementation
of
approved
policies
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Strategic
objectives

Output

Key
Performance
Indicator

Measures

Adherence to
Reporting
timelines

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

85% adherence
to reporting
timelines

Reported
Performance
Actual
achieved

Strategy
reporting
framework

Appoint
Revenue
Generation
Manager

Revenue
Generation

Revenue
Generation
Strategy

Revenue from
Fundraising

Strategic
objectives

Output

Internal
services

Key
Performance
Indicator

audit

Risk
management
services

Deliver
language
products and
services
that
create
a
conducive
environment

24

Annual plan of
action
for
languages
operations

Achievement
of audit plan

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)
PanSALB reporting timelines were
based on strategy submissions,
PFMA, and human resource
requirements. The following levels
of achievement were recorded i.e.
80% strategy, 100% PFMA, and
100% human resources. This led to
an average of 93%

Filled vacancy
for a Revenue
manager.

Appointment of
Revenue
Manager

Achieved

Revenue Generation Manager
appointed to commence on the
8th April 2013.

Revenue note
in the AFS

Approved
revenue strategy

Not Achieved

Revenue Generation Manager
only appointed on the 8th April
2013.

Revenue note
in the AFS

2% funds raised

Not Achieved

Revenue Generation Manager
only appointed on the 8th April
2013

Measures

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

Reported
Performance

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)

% rate
achievement
of audit plan

100%
achievement of
audit plan

% rate
achievement
of risk
Achievement
of
risk mitigation plan.
mitigation plan
% rate
milestone
achievement

Actual
Achieved

Met all audit plan milestones

100%
achievement of
risk mitigation
plan

Partially Achieved

There is an approved risk
mitigation plan. However, not all
the mitigation initiatives were
achieved due to lack of
resources

100% Achieved

Partially Achieved

The plan could not be achieved
largely due to staff shortages,
restructuring to improve
efficiency, and unavailability of
funding to employ new people

Milestone
achievement
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Strategic
objectives

Output

Key
Performance
Indicator

Revised
governance
structures
(NLU,
NLB,
and PLC)

Measures

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

Internal audit
opinion

Internal audit
opinion on
Revised NLUs,
NLBs, and PLC
structures

Milestone
achievement

Actual
Not Achieved

Build
PanSALB
capability

Output

Key
Performance
Indicator

Functional
Linguistic
Human Rights
services

Milestone
achievement

Research
Language

Research
Strategy

in

Functional
Monitoring and
Evaluation unit

M&E functional
unit

Revised
organisation
structure

Structure
development
schedule

Appointment of
key staff

Approved staff
appointment
schedule

A revision of the Norms and
Rules, and Articles of
Association
needed to be completed before
the structures could be revised
and an audit conducted.
The above documents were not
revised due to limited number of
the staff and funding to conduct
consultation meetings needed
to inform the revision of the
documents.
Approval of the Language
Framework was not achieved
as the Unit was not fully
established.

Not Achieved

Audit opinion
on Language
framework

Approved
language audit
report

Not Achieved

The audit report was not
undertaken as it requires a
specialist area manager in order
to provide technical support for
the language audit by the entire
specialist in the Technical
support unit.

Measures

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

Reported
Performance

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)

Organisational
Structure

An established
linguistic rights
unit

language audit
report

Strategic
objectives

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)

Approved
languages
framework

Approved
languages
framework
Language
framework

Reported
Performance

Actual
Partially Achieved

The unit was established by
year
end,
however
the
appointment of the Tribunal
members was delayed due to
the requirements of DAC in the
selection of tribunal members.

Approved
research partners

Not Achieved

Research Manager not yet
appointed due to limited funding
and therefore no work has
commenced

Functional M&
unit

Partially Achieved

The M&E head resumed duties
effective from 1st April 2013.
The delay in a functional M&E
unit was searching for the right
candidate.

Achieved
Approved
structure
Vacancy rate
%
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Partially Achieved

The structure has been +- 76%
populated.
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Strategic
objectives

Output

Key
Performance
Indicator

Measures

Annual
Target
(s) 2012-2013

Reported
Performance
Actual
Achieved

Signed off skills
audit

Signed
skills audit

Staff training

Implemented
Training
schedule

Performance
management
system (PMS)

Create
an
effective
service
delivery
Infrastructure

Upgraded
IT
infrastructure

off Skills
report

%
achievement
of training plan

Compliance to
PMS schedule

Internal
opinion

audit

% availability
of IT system
IT
and user
access

Reduced
system
downtime

100%
access

audit

Signed off
audit report

Output

Partially Achieved

Not all PanSALB employees
have been trained as per
approved schedule, only __36%
was trained in the 2012/13
Financial year.

Not Achieved

Performance contracts were
drawn up by end of the 4th
quarter after all workshops have
been conducted. Employees
only
signed performance
contracts after being inducted
with both the Turnaround
strategy and the Performance
Management System
The ICT unit has been
resourced with a manager, IT
Systems and Security
personnel. They ensure that the
system is well maintained and
continuously upgraded.

Positive opinion
from internal audit
compliance

100% IT System
availability

Achieved

user

Key
Performance
Indicator

Measures

Target

(s) 2012-2013

Reasons for variance (Actual
Reported
Performance
Actual
Achieved

Documented
business
processes

Utilisation
approved
business
processes

of

Internal
opinion

audit

100% adherence
to
business
process utilisation

Achieved
Create
awareness of
language use

Communication
schedule

Implementation
of
communication
schedule

%
achievement
of
communication
schedule.

Stakeholder
map

Approved
stakeholder
map

Stakeholder
mapping
document

100%
achieved
Communication
schedule

Achieved
Approved
stakeholder map
Achieved
Stakeholder
engagement
schedule
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Skills audit is signed off.

skill

100% achieved
training plan

Annual
Strategic
objectives

Reasons for variance (Actual
Performance (less) Annual
Targets)

Achievement
of Stakeholder
engagement
schedule

%
achievement
of stakeholder
schedule

100%
achievement of
stakeholder
schedule

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

Performance
Targets)

(less)

Annual

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

5 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
5.1.

Revenue Collection

Sources of
revenue
Income from
donations (2% of
government grant)
Income from sales
of existing
products and
services (5% of
government grant)
Other Income
(10% of
government grant
-i.e. interest
earned from
investments,
promotions, etc.)
Total

Estimate
R’000
R1, 560

2013/2014
Actual
(Over)/Under
Amount
Collection
Collected
R’000
R’000

Estimate
R’000
R0

2012/2013
Actual
(Over)/Under
Amount
Collection
Collected
R’000
R’000
N/A
N/A

R3, 900

R0

N/A

R7, 800

R0

N/A

N/A

R13, 260

PanSALB’s fundraising requirements are determined after the review of the institution’s projected balance
sheet, which includes taking into account business unit forecasts, capital requirements, the maturity
requirements of the current funding model and anticipated changes in the deposit base. Funding
requirements and initiatives are assessed at Project Level for diversification, tenor and currency
exposure, as well as availability of alternative liquidity sources. The financial targets above had been set
to support the implementation of strategic projects in the 2013/2014 financial year, which are critical to
achieving PanSALB’s constitutional mandate (e.g. the launch of PanSALB’s publishing house, the launch
of the Dr. Neville Alexander Language Scholarship, the launch of Judiciary Translation/Interpreting
Service).

5.2.

Programme Expenditure

SubProgramme
Name
Leadership
Corporate
Services
Financial
Services
Languages
Legal & LHR
Total

Budget
R’000

2012/2013
Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

R’000

R’000

R’000

4,032

9,368

-5,336

13,095

13,371

-276

9,766

1,175

10,943
34,910

35,981

-1,071

6,500
69,480

7,685

-1,185

76,171
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Actual
Expenditure
R’000

(Over)/Under
Expenditure
R’000

-6,691
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5.3

Capital Investment, maintenance and asset management plan

1.

INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance is the embodiment of processes and systems by which constitutional entities are
directed, controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a constitutional
entity’s enabling legislation and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regards to constitutional
entities is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in
tandem with the principles contained in the King III Report on Corporate Governance.
Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the constitutional entity are responsible for
corporate governance
2.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

These committees provide commentary on the following:
•
•
3.

The dates of the meeting
Areas of risk and what implementation plans/actions the constitutional entity undertook
EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

• Provides commentary on the reports submitted to the Executive Authority and the dates submitted.
• Discusses any issues raised by the executive authority.
4.

THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD

Introduction
The Board is constituted in accordance with the PanSALB Act as amended. The Members of the Board
recognise their roles and responsibilities as defined in the PanSALB Act, The PFMA, Treasury
Regulations and any other relevant legislation.
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance of PanSALB. The Board undertakes its role with
the objective of ensuring the long-term health and prosperity of PanSALB for the benefit of Parliament
and
stakeholders.
The Roles of the Board include:
The Role of the Board includes:
• General supervision of all aspects of the organisation.
• Determining PanSALB’s purpose, policies and values, and monitoring compliance with them.
• Approving PanSALB’s strategy and monitoring its implementation.
• Approving the accounting policy, financial and other controls, and any changes to them.
• Approving the budget and forecasts.
• Approving management initiatives, resource allocations and spending, subject to limitations as
defined in the approved Delegations of Authority.
• Ensuring that risk management systems and procedures are in place to protect PanSALB assets
and reputation.
• Appointment and dismissal of the Chief Executive Office.
• Approving the organisational structure; human resource plans; recruitment, development and
succession of executive management; the assignment of executive management
responsibilities; and the staff compensation strategy.
• Approving the Audit Fee
• Any matter which would have a material effect on PanSALB’s financial position, liabilities, future

28

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

strategy or reputation.
Delegation of the Board’s powers
Ensuring that PanSALB complies with all relevant laws, regulations and codes of best business
practice.
Reviewing financial and operating results.
Approving the annual report
Providing counsel to the CEO and his/her team on critical matters
Reporting annually to Parliament on all aspects of PanSALB’s performance
Evaluating the performance of the Board and of individual Board members
Making recommendations to Parliament regarding:
Remuneration of Board Members and Executive Management Team; and
Changes to the PanSALB Act

A formal strategic planning system for the development and approval of strategic plans should be
presented to the Board annually, by the management, and the organisation’s performance is then
measured against these plans. Except in exceptional circumstances, the Board does not get involved in
the day to day management of the organisation.
Board Charter
On 25 May 2011, the Board appointed Yarona Management Consulting, an organisation that provides
consulting services to review and develop the Corporate Governance Framework, Board Charters,
Board Committee Charters, Board Rules of Engagement and Terms of Reference for Board Committees.
The aim had been to address challenges that PanSALB had been faced with to ensure that there are no
lapses in Corporate Governance of the organisation, hence the need to develop a Corporate
Governance Framework to place the organisation on a sound footing to meet its mandate.
However, charters have not been used for the better part of the 2012/2013 financial year due to the
decision by the Minister of Arts and Culture, Paul Mashatile to dismiss the Board on June 15 2011.
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Composition of the Board
Name

Designation
(in terms of
the
Constitutional
Entity
Board
structure)

Date
Date resigned
appointed

Prof S
Ngubane

Chairperson

18th of
July 2008

Ms M
Sadiki

Deputy
Chairperson

18th of
July 2008

Mr B
Druchen

18th of
July 2008

Ms G
Gumede

18th of
July 2008

Adv M
Mdludlu

18th of
July 2008

Dr. E
Malete
Ms P
Sobahle

18th of
July 2008
18th of
July 2008

Prof M
Mojalefa

18th of
July 2008

Prof Z
Motsa

18th of
July 2008

Quali
ficati
ons

13 June 2012
Board
disbanded
13 June 2012
Board
disbanded
13 June 2012
Board
disbanded
13 June 2012
Board
disbanded
13 June 2012
Board
disbanded
12 September
2011
-

Area of Board
Expertise Directorships
(List the
entities)

No. of
Other
Committees Meetings
(e.g.: Audit attended
committee)

Linguistics
Linguistics

4
Audit
committee

Sign
Language

5
Audit
committee

Law

Risk

Linguistics

2

Corporate

2

Governance

13 June 2012
Board
disbanded
13 June 2012
Board
disbanded

Linguistics

1

Linguistics

2

No. of meetings held
1

No. of members
5

Name of members
Mr O. Thenga
Ms G. Gumede
Mr R. Mnisi
Ms E. Molefe
Ms F. Sadiki

Remuneration of board members
Name
Prof S
Ngubane
Ms M Sadiki
Mr B Druchen
Ms G Gumede
Adv M Mdludlu
Dr. E Malete
Ms P Sobahle
Prof M Mojalefa
Prof Z Motsa
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5
4

Committees
Committee
Audit
and
Committee

4

Remuneration
R’000
73

Other allowance
R’000
1

-

Total
R’000
74

76
24
27
28
24
13
2
13

1
1
1
-

3
-

79
25
28
29
24
13
2
13
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT

Nature of risk management
The Nature of PanSALB’s Risk Management is Enterprise-wide Risk Management (ERM). ERM is a broad-based application of
risk management in all major functions and activities of PanSALB, rather than only in selected areas, to isolate the material
risks. PanSALB opted for ERM as a response to material risks (including opportunities) as they are dynamic and often
interdependent and need to be managed collectively. Moreover ERM compels PanSALB to look beyond itself, requiring the
consideration of risks on performance, regardless of whether risk is internally or externally generated.
Risk management strategies to identify and manage risks
PanSALB’s ERM approach includes Risk Identification. Risk Identification is a deliberate and systematic effort to identify and
document PanSALB’s key risks. A comprehensive inventory of risks based on the threats and events that might prevent,
degrade, delay or enhance the achievement of the objectives is conducted. The risk identification process should cover all risks,
regardless of whether or not such risks are within the direct control of PanSALB.
Risk workshops and interviews had been conducted and were useful for identifying, filtering and screening risks. A robust and
sophisticated method had been adopted, together with quantitative techniques.
On 27 February 2013, senior management from respective business units attended a workshop in which risks were identified
and discussed, in order to clarify and align risks in terms of strategic objectives, and to assign risk owners. Subsequent to the
risk identification and analysis process the risk register has been compiled.
Relevant information of risks identified had been properly and timeously communicated by the Risk Owners to employees in the
respective units in order to equip relevant officials to identify, assess and respond to risks. .
PanSALB’s response has been to avoid or terminate the activity that produces the risk; treating the risk by improving the internal
control system, exploiting the risk factors, and by implementing strategies to take advantage of the opportunities presented by
such risk factors. Moreover PanSALB has since created a Monitoring and Evaluation Unit in order to track the process of ERM,
inter alia:
• Monitoring of progress made by management with the implementation of ERM methodology;
• Monitoring of key risk indicators;
• Monitoring of loss and incident data;
• Management’s progress made with risk mitigation action plan; and
• An annual assurance review of ERM performance

32

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

GOVERNANCE

7. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
PanSALB has no internal Control Unit on the approved structure. The function to bridge the in-house internal controls
of the institution lies with the office of the Chief Executive Officer. PanSALB has anticipated establishing an Internal
Control Unit specifically to provide reasonable assurance on overall internal controls by conducting risk-based
compliance audits, quarterly performance audits, and financial reviews
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8. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members from 15 March 2013.
Name

Qualifications

Internal
external

Mr B. Muzarewetu

CA (SA)
Bsc Accounting
Science (Hons)
Post Grad
Diploma in
Auditing
CA (SA)
B Com
Post Grad
Diploma in
Accounting
CA (SA)
B Compt
CA (SA)
B Com
M Com

External

N/A

15 March
2013

-

4

External

N/A

15 March
2013

-

4

External

N/A

-

4

External

N/A

15 March
2013
15 March
2013

-

4

Mr T.L. Madurai

Mr R. Madavha
Ms E. Swart
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Date
Date
appointed Resigned
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9. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
o

A draft Compliance Framework has been developed and is awaiting approval. The Framework is intended
to provide guidance to the Board and management in discharging their responsibilities relating to laws,
rules, codes and standards. It describes practical considerations that should be taken into account in
governance of compliance, and it is aligned with the South African General Accepted Compliance Frame
work.

o

Section 11(4) of the Pan South African Language Board Act No. 59 of 1995, as amended in 1999, provides
that PanSALB may investigate on its own initiative, or on receipt of a written complaint, any alleged violation
of a language right, language policy or language practice. In response to these PanSALB has established
a Linguistic Human Rights Tribunal in order to comply with the act. A Tribunal Charter has been developed
but is awaiting approval.

o

Section 10A of Pan South African Language Board Act 59 of 1995, as amended, provides that PanSALB
may engage in fundraising in order to finance itself. Management has established a Revenue Generation
Function, together with a Revenue Generation Committee governed by a Revenue Generation Charter.
Furthermore, a Revenue Strategy and a Revenue Policy have since been developed.

o

In compliance with the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended, and Treasury
Regulations, Management has approved a Loss and Disposal Committee and has established a Disposal
Committee in order to deal with loss and disposal in the organisation.

o

Section 8(8)(c) of the Pan South African Language Board Act No. 59 of 1995, as amended in 1999,
established the National Lexicography Units (NLUs) and PanSALB shall allocate funds to the Units for
fulfilment of their functions, provided that they shall be accountable to PanSALB for the monies allocated,
abide by PanSALB Policies and adhere to the principles of promoting language development. In response,
Management has drafted new Memorandums of Incorporation to convert the Units from Section 21
Companies to Non-profit Companies in terms of the new Companies Act No. 71 of 2008, and to ensure that
the Units comply with section 8(8) of the Pan South African Language Board Act No. 59 of 1995, as
amended in 1999, in particular the consolidated financial statements.

o

PanSALB has complied with statutory reporting required by the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of
1999 as amended, in particular the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements and related reports.

o

In response to the Audit finding of 2012/2013 management undertakes to review and develop policies and
Frameworks to ensure compliance.
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10. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The purpose of the PanSALB Fraud Plan (FPP) is to provide direction to enable the organisation to deal with all the basic
mechanisms and devices of preventing fraud and corruption.
The Accounting Officer has undertaken to ensure that PanSALB has, and maintains, an effective, efficient and transparent
system of financial and risk management and internal control.
Mechanisms in place to report on fraud and corruption are, inter alia:
•
•

The responsibility of an employee to immediately report all fraud and corruption to his/her immediate managers;
should the manager be involved the employee should escalate it to the Accounting Officer to initiate investigation.
PanSALB encourages members of the public, service providers and stakeholders to report suspected fraud and
corruption, and to contact the Governments’ National Hotline and any members of management or the CEO.

PanSALB management has commenced a process to set up a Hotline to report fraud and corruption.
In terms of the FPP, the following processes will be followed:
•
A high level assessment will be conducted. Thereafter management will take careful consideration of the facts
Presented, following which investigation proceedings will be initiated to the full extent of the law.
•
During investigation, simultaneous damage control will be implemented. Peradventure that the fraud and corruption
has been found, PanSALB shall respond by seeking remedies and sanctions; inter alia criminal, civil or administrative.
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11. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
If a supply chain management official or other role player (e.g. a member of staff, Board or Committee) or any close
family member, partner or associate of such official of that person appointed by the Entity that partakes in a supply
chain management process, and/or has any direct or indirect business interest in any contract to be awarded, that
official must comply with the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Employees may not have a material interest (financial or other) in a supplier. If there is an interest this
should be disclosed; and
Should withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in the process relating to that contract,
including any discussion in any matter relating to such process.
Non-public information may not be used for an employee’s benefit or disclosed outside PanSALB
No employee may obtain a personal loan from a supplier (except from a Bank)
Employees may not perform a second job with a supplier that creates conflict of interest, including
consulting, directorship on boards, etc.
The above will apply to both personal and family interest.
Regarding family members who deal with the supplier, the CEO should be informed in writing, and steps
are to be taken and documented to resolve the conflict of interest.
The Bid Specification and Bid Evaluation Committee members are required to sign the declaration of
interest prior to partaking in specification and evaluation processes.
The Bidders are required to complete the declaration of interest form (SBD4) attached to their bid
documents/quotations
The Supply Chain Management officials are familiarised with the above processes.

If internal,
position in
the public
entity
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12. CODE OF CONDUCT

The need exists to provide guidelines to employees with regards to their relationship with the Legislature, Political and Executive
Office Bearers, other employees and the general public to indicate the spirit in which employees should perform their duties,
what should be done to avoid conflicts of interests and what is expected of them in terms of their personal conduct in their public
and private life.
In light of the above, the Pan South African Language Board as an employer is responsible for making sure that employees are
aware of penalties for violating the Code of Conduct, as the Code acts as a guideline to employees as to what is expected of
them from an ethical point of view, both in their individual conduct and in their relationship with the general public, as well as
fellow employees.
Section 20 (t) of the Public Service Act, 1994, states that “An employee shall be guilty of misconduct and may be dealt with in
accordance with the relevant sections of the Act if he or she contravenes any provision of the Code of Conduct or fails to comply
with any provision thereof”. All employees are expected to comply with the Code of Conduct. The Human Resources Division
shall receive, record and review disclosures of wrongdoing in the workplace that breach the Code and make the necessary
recommendations where warranted to Executive Heads or Divisional Heads, as they are responsible for the effective
management, monitoring and evaluation of the Code.
We are pleased to inform you that a platform has been established to assist PanSALB employees who find themselves in
questionable situations that might have arisen.
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13. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB) as an employer considers its employees to be its most valuable
asset and undertakes to safeguard them through providing and maintaining, as far as reasonable and practical, a
working environment that is safe and without risk to the health of its employees. In ensuring a safe and healthy
working environment all employees of PanSALB have to work closely together with the employer in minimising any
risk that might jeopardise the health and safety of employees of the organisation.
The Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993 requires the employer to
provide and maintain, as far as reasonable and practical, a work environment that is safe and without risk to the
health of employees. This means the employer must ensure that the workplace is free of hazardous ergonomics and
substances, microorganisms etc., which may cause injury or diseases.
To this end we have an occupational health and safety policy. Its objective is:
• To provide and maintain, as far as practicable, systems and equipment that are safe and without risk to the
health of staff;
• To take steps to eliminate or mitigate, as far as practicable, any hazard or potential hazard to the safety or
health of employees, before resorting to personal protective equipment;
• To provide such information, instructions, training and supervision as may be necessary to ensure, as far as
practicable, a healthy and safe working environment for all employees; and to take all necessary measures
to ensure that the requirements in terms of the Occupational Health and Safety Act are complied with by
every person employed by PanSALB.
We have dedicated personnel who conduct health and safety audits in order to check the effectiveness of health and
safety measures and investigate incidents, complaints from workers regarding health and safety matters and report
them in writing to the Occupational Health and Safety Committee. In this financial year we are pleased to inform you
that we have run an incident free zone in this regard.
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14. COMPANY /BOARD SECRETARY

Section 86 of the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008 it is mandatory for a public company or state-owned companies. It is not
mandatory for institutions such as PanSALB to appoint a Board Secretary. Nevertheless Board Secretarial responsibilities are
completed through delegated officials.
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14. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The need exists to provide guidelines to employees with regard to their relationship with the Legislature, Political and Executive
Since 2010 PanSALB has adopted Mogodu Children’s Home, situated at Ratjiepane village about 70 km north of Pretoria in
North West Province as part of its social responsibility to end poverty. Mogodu’s children are currently living on less than R3.70
per person per day.
PanSALB donated food, clothing and computers during International Mandela Day.

Social Responsibility
International Mandela Day
18 July 2012

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

41

PART D:
HUMAN RESOURCES

42

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

1. INTRODUCTION

Overview of HR matters at the constitutional entity:
PanSALB has ensured that it formulates an HR strategy to ensure that it is able to attract the right number of
employees, the right composition (representatively) and competencies, and furthermore to ensure that the
employees are correctly placed to deliver on the core mandate of PanSALB and to achieve its strategic goals and
objectives resulting from the strategic plan. It is supported by the Public Service Regulations, 2001 Chapter 1,
and Part III D.1 to D.3. The White Paper on HR Management in the Public Service, December 1997 also states
that HR planning is essential in order to ensure that an organisation’s human resources are capable of meeting
its operational objectives. HR planning involves determining the demand and supply of employees that are critical
to achieving the strategic objectives, analysing the gap between demand and supply, and developing a plan that
seeks to close the gap.
It is of critical importance that the performance of employees be continuously managed and that outstanding
performance is recognised and rewarded. All efforts were made to have functional implementation of the
Employees Performance Management Development System (EPMDS) to ensure timeous development of
Performance Agreements/work plans for all levels of staff and management, with strict adherence to required
assessment dates.
PanSALB has established an Employee Wellbeing Programme to provide professional, confidential assistance
for any challenges of a personal nature or otherwise. The programme is designed to encourage early employee
awareness of such problems and to offer assistance at the earliest opportunity.
As in the case with any dynamic and developing institution, PanSALB is challenged by the fact that it was unable
to fulfil its constitutional mandate. A comprehensive assessment of the structure of PanSALB and its impact, both
positive and negative, on service delivery was conducted. It came to the attention of the Caretaker Chief
Executive Officer that some structural changes had to be made. A need was identified to redesign, create and
grade a number of positions in an attempt to strengthen strategic and operational support within PanSALB. This
resulted in the restructuring of the line function in order to create a meaningful organisation, as well as to group
homogeneous functions together. In pursuit of streamlining service delivery within PanSALB, all the posts which
were redesigned are regarded as critical to achieve the strategic objectives of PanSALB future HR plans/goal.
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
Personnel cost by salary band
Level

Personnel
Expenditure

Top Management

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

% of total personnel
exp. to total personel
cost (R’000)

No.
of employees

2,736,171.00

9.2%

3

912,057.00

7,008,550.51

23.5%

8

876,068.81

13,623,292.32

45.7%

29

469,768.70

4,415,775.12

14.8%

22

200,717.05

1,423,546.72

4.8%

13

109,503.59

2%

10

62,859.00

100%

85

2,630,974.15

(Levels 14-16)
Senior Management
(Levels 13)
Middle Management
(Levels 9-12)
Skilled
(Levels 6-8)
Semi-skilled
(Levels 2-5)
Unskilled

628,590.00

(Level 1)
TOTAL

29,835,841.67

Performance Rewards
% of performance rewards
to total personnel cost
(R’000)
0

Programme

Performance rewards

Personnel Expenditure
(R’000)

Top Management

0

0

Senior Management

4

R 94 791.00

17.7

Middle Management

13

R230 641.73

43

Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled

7
24
11

R 65 853.00
R129 243.00
R 15 553.80

12.3
24.1
2.9

TOTAL

59

R536 082.53

100

Training Costs
Directorate/
Business Unit

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training
Expenditure
(R’000)
R6580.00
VAT
R940.00
VAT
R6580.00
VAT
R1880.00
VAT

44

excl

Training
Expenditure as
a % of
Personnel Cost.
16.6

excl

No.
of employees
trained

Avg training
cost per
employee

7

R940.00

2.4

1

R940.00

excl

16.6

3

R2 193.00

excl

4.8

2

R940.00
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Employment and vacancies
Programme

2012/2013
No. of
Employees

2013/2014
Approved Posts

2013/2014
Vacancies

% of vacancies

Top
Management

3

9

3

6

11%

(Levels 14-16)
Senior
Management

8

25

22

3

5%

(Levels 13)
Middle
Management

29

72

44

28

50%

22

39

21

18

32%

Semi-skilled

13

14

13

1

2%

(Levels 2-5)
Unskilled

10

0

2 (Contract)

0

0%

85

159

105

56

100%

(Levels 9-12)
Skilled

2013/2014
No. of
Employees

(Level 6-8)

(Levels 1)
TOTAL

During the 2012/13 financial year PanSALB embarked on a recruitment drive to advertise and fill the critical posts in the
core business language division at senior management to strengthen units and to ensure continuous service delivery.
Both internal and external applicants were considered in filling these posts.
A number of vacancies were created as result of the Turnaround Strategy which took place in the 2012/13 financial year.
All posts that were identified as critical were speedily advertised in the same financial year and filled.
In instances where potential staff members were identified competency assessments and skills audits were conducted on
all employees.

Employment changes
Salary Band

Employment
at beginning
of period 12/13

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at
end of the
period 12/13

Top Management

1

4

2

3

(Level 14-16)
Senior Management

5

4

1

8

(Level 13)
Professional qualified

21

9

1

29

(Level 9-12)
Skilled

17

5

0

22

(Level 6-8)
Semi-skilled

12

1

0

13

Unskilled

10

0

0

10

(Level 1)
TOTAL

66

23

4

85

(Level 2-5)
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Reasons for staff leaving
Reason

Number

% of total no. of staff leaving

Death

0

0%

Resignation

1

25%

Dismissal

0

0%

Retirement

1

25%

Ill health

0

0%

Expiry of contract

2

50%

Other

0

0%

Total

4

100%

leave due to resignation had been as a result of change in career aspiration and retirement.
Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary Action

Number

Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written warning
Dismissal

0
1
0
0

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 2012/13
Levels
MALE
African
Current
Top
Management

Coloured
Target

Current

Indian
Target

Current

White
Target

Current

1

0

0

0

(Levels 14-16)
Senior
Management

4

0

0

0

(Levels 13)
Professional
qualified

18

0

0

0

Skilled

11

0

0

0

(Levels 6-8)
Semi-skilled

0

0

0

0

Unskilled
(Level 1)

1

0

0

0

TOTAL

35

(Levels 9-12)

(Levels 2-5)
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Levels

FEMALE
AFRICAN
Current

Top
Management

Target

COLOURED

INDIAN

Current

Current

Target

WHITE
Target

Current

3

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

9

0

0

1

(Levels 9-12)
Skilled

12

0

0

0

(Levels 6-8)
Semi-skilled

12

0

0

0

9

0

0

0

Target

(Levels 14-16)
Senior
Management
(Levels 13)
Professional
qualified

(Levels 2-5)
Unskilled
(Level 1)
TOTAL

49
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Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 2012/13
Directorate/
Business Unit

Training
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training
Expenditure
as a % of
Personnel
Cost

No. of
employees
trained

Avg training
cost per
employee

R940.00
excl VAT

2.4

1

R940.00

R940.00
excl VAT

2.4

1

R940.00

R1 880 .00
excl VAT

2.4

2

R940.00

R940.00
excl VAT

2.4

1

R940.00

R1 88 0.00
excl VAT

5

2

R940.00

Facilities
(Telephone
Etiquette)
Facilities (Records
Management)

R940.00
excl VAT

2.4

1

R940.00

R1 88 0.00
excl VAT

5

2

R940 .00

Facilities
(Housekeeping)
Language Services
(Report Writing)

R6 580.00

17

3

R2 193.33

R1 0 634.20
excl VAT

27

23

R462.35

Supply Chain
Management
(Report Writing)

R2 311.75
excl VAT

6

5

R462.35

Information
Communications
Technology
(Report Writing)
Finance
(Report Writing )

R924 .70
excl VAT

2.6

2

R462.35

R1 849.40
excl VAT

5

4

R462.35

Facilities
(Report Writing)

R1 387.05
excl VAT

3.5

3

R462.35

Communications and
Promotions

R1 849.40
excl VAT

4.7

4

R462.35

Legal Services
(Report Writing)

R1 387.05
excl VAT

4

3

R462.35

Corporate

R462.35

1.2

1

R462.35

Office of the CEO
(Office
Administration)
Office of the CFO
(Office
Administration)
Languages
Services
(Office
Administration)
Corporate
Services
(Office
Administration)
Administration
(Office Legal
Services)

48

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

05

PART E:
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

49

FNANCIAL INFORMATION

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT
ON PAN SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Pan South African Language
Board (PanSALB) set out on pages 68 to 113, which comprise the consolidated and separate
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated and separate statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
and separate financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No1 of 1999)(PFMA), and for such internal control as the
accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements
based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
qualified audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion
Other operating expenditure and accruals
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has accounted for all
other operating expenditure and accruals. I was unable to confirm all other operating expenditure and
accruals have been recorded by alternative means. Consequantly, I was unable to determine whether
any adjustment to other operating expenditure and accruals stated in note 8 of the annual financial
statement for the amount of R21,330,000 ( 2012: R8,044,000) in the consolidated and separate
financial statement was necessary.
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Irregular expenditure

7. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has disclosed all
irregular expenditures in note 34 of the consolidated and separate financial statements, incurred
for the current and prior year as required by the PFMA section 40(3)(b)(i). I was unable to confirm
the irregular expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether
any adjustment to irregular expenditure stated at R14,876,000 (2012: R8,287,000) in the
consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary.

Finance lease obligation

8. The constitutional institution incorrectly accounted for finance lease payments as
operating lease expenditure as disclosed in note 8 of the consolidated and separate financial
statements. Consequently, operating lease expenditure is overstated and finance lease is
understated by R200,103 (2012: R175,178). The effects on the consolidated and separate
financial statements are that operating lease expenditure, the surplus for the period and
accumulated surplus are understated by R200,103 (2012: R175,178) respectively.

Operating lease note

9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has disclosed the
operating lease arrangements in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice, GRAP 13, Leases. I was unable to confirm the minimum lease payments
due by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to
operating lease arrangements should be disclosed, in the consolidated and separate financial
statements as necessary.

Opinion

10. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraphs, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the PanSALB and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013
and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matters

11. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures

12. As disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, the corresponding
figures for 31 March 2012 have been restated as a result of errors discovered during 2013 in the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the PanSALB at, and for the year ended, 31
March 2012.

Going concern

13. Note 32 to the consolidated and separate financial statements indicates that the PanSALB’s total
liabilities exceed its assets by R5,081,000. The accumulated deficit, unrecorded liabilities,
contingent liabilities and along with other matters in this note, indicates the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the constitutional institution’s ability to operate as a
going concern.

Additional matters

14. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedule

15. The supplementary information set out on pages 102 to 103 does not form part of the
consolidated and separate financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have
not audited this schedule and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS
16. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following
findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and
regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Predetermined objectives

I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in
the annual performance report as set out on pages 17 to 30 of the annual report.
17. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall
criteria of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance
report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual
reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned
objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are
measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant as
required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance
information.
The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine
whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).
18. The material findings are as follows:

Usefulness of information

19. The National Treasury Guide for the preparation of the annual report requires that explanations
for major variances between the planned and reported (actual) targets should be provided in all
instances and should also be supported by adequate and reliable corroborating evidence.
20. Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for 71% major variances as
disclosed in the annual performance report. The institution’s records did not permit the application
of alternative audit procedures due to the absence of information systems.
21. Consequently, I did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the
validity, accuracy and completeness of the reasons for major variances.

Reliability of information
22. The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI)
requires that institutions should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store
performance information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual
achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets.
23. I was unable to obtain the information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself
as to the reliability of information presented with respect to 71% of the significantly important
targets for all the selected strategic objectives.
24. This was due to absence of information systems and sufficient appropriate evidence in support
of the information presented with respect to all strategic objectives selected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and
regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings

52

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

FNANCIAL INFORMATION
on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in
the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows:

Strategic planning and performance management
25. The strategic plan of the institution did not cover the period of at least three years as required by
Treasury Regulation 5.2.3(a) as a result of the one year turnaround strategy.
26. The strategic plan of the institutions did not include the expected outcomes of the institution’s
programmes as required by Treasury Regulation 5.2.3(d).
27. The constitutional institution did not maintain an effective, efficient and transparent systems of
financial and risk management and internal controls as required by section 38(1)(a)(i) of the
PFMA.
28. The accounting officer of the constitutional institution did not establish procedures for quarterly
reporting to the executive authority to facilitate effective performance monitoring, evaluation and
corrective action as required by Treasury Regulation 5.3.1.

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports

29. The consolidated and separate financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper
records as required by section 40(1) (a) and (b) of the Public Finance Management Act.
30. Material misstatements of current assets, liabilities, expenditure, and disclosure items identified
by the auditors in the submitted consolidated and separate financial statements were
subsequently corrected and the supporting records were provided subsequently, but the
uncorrected material misstatements and or supporting records that could not be provided
resulted in the consolidated and separate financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.

Audit committees

31. An audit committee was not in place from June 2012 to March 2013, as required by sections
38(1)(a)(ii) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.1. This
resulted in responsibilities of the committee not being carried out.

Internal audit
32. The internal audit function was not under the control and direction of the audit committee from
June 2012 to March 2013, as required by section 38(1)(a)(ii) of the Public Finance Management
Act.

Procurement and contract management
33. Goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without inviting
competitive bids, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.1.
34. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining
the required price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.
35. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether
they are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state, which is
prescribed in order to comply with Treasury regulation 16A8.3.
36. Contracts and quotations were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters had not been declared
by the South African Revenue Services to be in order as required by Treasury Regulations
16A9.1(d) and the Preferential Procurement Regulations.
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37. The preference point system was not applied in all procurement of goods and services above
R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and
Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(b).
38. IT related goods and services, classified as mandatory, were not procured through SITA as
required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.3 (e).

Expenditure management
39. The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as required
by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.
40. Contractual obligations and money owed by the constitutional institution were not settled within
30 days or an agreed period, as required by section 38(1)(f) of the Public Finance Management
Act and Treasury Regulation 8.2.3.

PanSALB Act section 8(8) (c)
41. Oversight and monitoring responsibilities in terms of section 8(8)(c) of the PanSALB act was not
performed over the National Lexicography Units controlled by the constitutional institution.

Internal control

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance
report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the
fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the basis for
qualified opinion, the findings on the annual performance plan and the findings on compliance with
laws and regulations included in this report.

Leadership
42. The board was disbanded in June 2012. At the date of this report the process for appointment of
the board was still under way. This resulted in the institution operating without the Board.
43. A Caretaker Chief Executive Officer (CCEO) was appointed by the Minister of Department of Arts
and Culture when the board was disbanded. This resulted in lack of segregation of duties as the
(CCEO) performed the roles of Accounting Officer (CEO) and executive authority (Board).

Financial and performance management
44. The consolidated and separate financial statements were not adequately reviewed for
completeness and accuracy prior to submission thereof for audit purpose resulting in material
misstatements. The systems and processes in place are not adequately designed to support
accurate and complete consolidated annual financial statements.
45. System and process have not been developed to ensure that performance information is
accurate, valid and complete.

Governance
46. The institution operated without an audit committee from June 2012 to March 2013, due to the
disbandment of the Board. An audit committee was appointed on the 15 March 2013 and this
resulted in internal audit operating under the direction of the CCEO for the duration when the
committee did not exist.

OTHER REPORTS
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OTHER REPORTS

Investigations
47. An investigation concerning legal fees was conducted to confirm if formal tender process was
followed for the appointment of attorneys and this constituted in irregular expenditure. No
disciplinary proceedings have been instituted in line with the recommendation of the report.

Pretoria
31 July 2013
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1. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

Statement of Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2013
The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB). The financial statements presented on page s 11 to 50 have
been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by
the Accounting Standards Board, and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).
The financial statements include amounts based on judgements and estimates made by management. The Accounting Officer
has prepared the other information included in the annual report too, and is responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency
with the financial statements.
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The Accounting Officer has no reason to
believe that PanSALB will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future, based on forecasts and available cash resources.
The audit report of the Auditor-General is presented on page 11. The consolidated financial statements were approved and
signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 July 2013

________________
Mxolisi Zwane
ACCOUNTING OFFICER
31 July 2013
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Caretaker CEO report
The past financial year, i.e. 2012/13, has been dedicated to turning around PanSALB to focus on its mandate.
PanSALB was established in terms of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa through the PanSALB Act
No. 59 of 1995, as amended in 1999. Its mandate is to promote and create conditions for the development and use
of all official languages as well as the Khoi, San and Nama, and the South African Sign Language. PanSALB is
required to foster the respect for all languages and to encourage multilingualism.
It was not by coincidence that PanSALB was established in the early dawn of democracy. Language constitutes
who we are as a people; it is therefore the foundation of our identity and existence. It is for this reason that the
legislature saw to it that upon the dawn of our democracy that this entity should be established to ensure that all
South Africans can find fulfilment in exercising their language rights.
I started working with PanSALB at the end of June 2012, after the Minister of the Department of Arts and Culture
(DAC), Honorable Mr. Paul Mashatile, in consultation with the portfolio committee had dissolved the Board. The
disbandment of the Board technically placed PanSALB under administration. The Board was disbanded because
PanSALB had failed to deliver on its mandate and to comply with all required administrative governance
imperatives. Therefore a Caretaker Chief Executive Office (CCEO) had been appointed to get PanSALB ready to
deliver on its mandate and comply with governance imperatives.
The process of turning around PanSALB focussed on two goals viz. developing a sustainable strategy for the next
five years, i.e. 2013 – 2017, to enable it to fulfil its mandate, and create policies that will ensure compliance and
good governance.
The development of the turnaround strategy involved consultations with various stakeholders viz. Provincial
Structure of PanSALB i.e. NLU’s, PLC’s, & NLB’s; Internal staff members; provincial Departments of Arts and
Culture, and various other structures. This process led to the adoption of a vision that reads – A nation that acts
intentionally about its mother languages/tongues while promoting multilingualism. This vision is supported by a
strategy theme that will focus on increasing the number of people who prefer the use of mother tongue while
multilingual.
The turnaround strategy was anchored on a values based culture and clearly defined predetermined strategic
objectives. The following values were adopted
• Respect;
• Accountability;
• Integrity;
• Transparency;
• Commitment; and
• Passion.
These values would be supported by the following strategic objectives –
• Ensure the sustainability of PanSALB;
• Deliver language products and services that create a conducive environment;
• Build PanSALB capability;
• Create an effective service delivery Infrastructure; and
• Create awareness of language use
The implementation of the turnaround strategy led to the following achievements
• Improved employee morale through engagement;
• Increased stakeholder buy-in through involvement;
• Arrested runaway expenditure;
• Appointed suitable employees to execute operations of PanSALB;
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•
•
•
•

Adopted a new structure aligned with the mandate;
An approved 2013/14 to 2017/18 strategy;
Implemented Auditor General recommendations and findings e.g. Forensic audit of the high Legal Fees;
Review and alignment of all contracts;

The turnaround strategy highlighted the following challenges:
• Inadequate levels of funding to implement the full mandate of PanSALB;
• Resolution of PanSALB’s legal status as a chapter nine institution;
• Revenue generation for other sources other than Government;
• Employing people to take the turnaround process forward; and
• Building employee and institutional capability to deliver.
All the above achievements and challenges were delivered under financial constraints since the entity had been
and still is significantly underfunded. This poses a challenge and a risk in assisting the organisation to deliver on its
mandate.
The audit report of the Auditor-General is presented here, was signed and agreed to by the Accounting Officer. The
report includes an audit of both financial and non-financial information. The financial statements were approved
and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 July 2013.
I would like to thank the Department of Arts and Culture for providing leadership in ensuring that PanSALB
continues to exist and serve the public at large. I would also like to extend our gratitude to all language
stakeholders, Auditor-General, and the director general who contributed to strengthening our role of promoting
multilingualism.
The staff and I as a collective of PanSALB commit to upholding our responsibilities as enshrined in the constitution.

Mxolisi Zwane
Caretaker CEO
31 July 2013
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
The Audit and Risk Committee has pleasure in submitting this report in respect of the 2013 financial year, as required by the
Treasury Regulations 3.1, issued in terms of sections 38 and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).

1. Background information
During June 2012 the Board of the Pan South African Language Board had been dissolved following a governance review of
the functioning of the organisation. Mr Mxolisi Zwane had then been appointed as the Caretaker Chief Executive Officer until a
such time as new board is appointed.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
2. Audit and Risk Committee Membership
The membership of the Audit and Risk Committee for the financial year 2013 was as follows:
a. Audit and Risk Committee Members from 1 April 2012 to 31 May 2012.
The Audit and Risk Committee comprised of the following members
Name
Mr O. Thenga (Acting Chairperson)

Qualification
B Com (Hons)
CGAP

Ms G. Gumede

Termination Date
11 June 2012

Meetings attended
1

11 June 2012

1

Mr R. Mnisi

LLB
Attorney

11 June 2012

0

Ms E. Molefe

B Com
CA (SA)

11 June 2012

0

Ms F. Sadiki

11 June 2012

0

Mr A. Mooke

31 January 2012

0

Ms T Tusiki

31 January 2012

0

Ms P Sobahle

31 January 2012

0

This Audit and Risk Committee held 1 meeting during their term on 24 May 2012. The term of office for this Committee
ended on 11 June 2012 when the then Board was dissolved.
b. Audit and Risk Committee Members from 12 June 2012 to 14 March 2013.
During this period, there was no Audit and Risk Committee, following the disbandment of the board.
c. Audit and Risk Committee Member from 15 March 2013 to 31 March 2013.
The current audit committee was appointed by the Caretaker Chief Executive Officer on the 15th of March 2013 for a three
year period ending on 15 March 2016. The members of this committee are listed hereunder.

Name

Qualification

Mr B. Muzarewetu

CA (SA) Independent member
Bsc Accounting Science
Independent member
(Hons) Chairperson

15 March 2013

Mr R. Madavha

CA (SA)
B Compt

Independent member

15 March 2013

Mr T.L. Madurai

CA (SA) Independent
member
B Com Post Grad
Diploma in Accounting
CA (SA) Independent
member
B Compt

Independent member

15 March 2013

Independent member

15 March 2013

Ms E. Swart

Position

Date of
Appointment

The Caretaker Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditors and External Auditor (Auditor General of
South Africa) have a standing invitation to all Committee meetings. Other key members of the management team attend
committee meetings by invitation only.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
3.

Audit and Risk Committee Meeting Attendance

The details of the previous Audit and Risk Committee are disclosed in the annual financial statements. The current Audit
and Risk Committee held the following meetings:
Meeting

Date

Audit and Risk
Audit and Risk
Audit and Risk
Audit and Risk

17 April 2013
21 May 2013
30 May 2013
29 July 2013

There was 100% attendance by members at all meetings held. The matters discussed included those relating to the 2013
financial year.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
4.

Audit and Risk Committee's Role

The Audit and Risk Committees primary responsibility is to provide independent oversight and assistance to the Accounting
Officer on control, governance and risk management. Below are the main activities undertaken by the Audit and Risk
Committee:
Effectiveness of systems of internal control and risk management
Section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA states that the Accounting Officer must ensure that the constitutional entity has and maintains
effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial, risk management and internal control. The Audit and Risk
Committee is responsible for the oversight of risk management and the reviews of the internal controls and risk
management systems.
Internal audit
PanSALB has an outsourced Internal Audit Function. PwC are the independent Internal Auditors. The Internal Audit
contract for PwC expires on 31 July 2013 and management has commenced with the process of appointing the new
Internal Auditors. The Audit and Risk Committee reviews and approves the Internal Audit Plan. The current audit plan was
previous Audit and Risk Committee.
The Audit and Risk Committee has considered the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function; reviewed the significant
matters in the Internal Audit reports issued during the year and the related management responses to these significant
findings.
The current audit plan was approved by the predecessor, Audit and Risk Committee.
External audit
The External Auditor is the Auditor-General of South Africa.
The Audit and Risk Committee met with the AGSA and reviewed the significant findings contained in the Auditor General
Reports and management responses and progress made to address the findings to date. The Audit and Risk Committee
held separate meetings with the External Auditors.
Quality of management reports submitted in terms of PFMA
The current Audit and Risk Committee was appointed on 15 March 2013. However subsequent to year end in its scheduled
meetings, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the management reports and based on the review performed, the
Committee reports that, management reports were presented to enable us to:
- Understand clearly the challenges faced by PanSALB and the progress made with regard to the implementation
of the turnaround strategy;
- Monitor the integrity, accuracy and reliability of the financial position of the PanSALB;
- Review the financial information, legal position on dispute, management accounts and financial statements of
PanSALB; and
- Review the disclosure in the financial reports of PanSALB and the related context.
The audit committee has requested management to put a plan in place to address all findings from the AGSA.

5. Summary of the main activities undertaken by the Audit and Risk Committee
The current Audit and Risk Committee has recently been appointed. As a new Committee, it requires time to make an
objective assessment of its performance against the responsibilities as contained in the Charter. The Audit and Risk
Committee has discharged its responsibilities in terms of its terms of reference; which was adopted by it and will be reviewed
annually.
The focus for the new Committee since it appointment included but is not limited to:
- Familiarising itself with the organisation's turn around strategy
- Appraise itself of the various organisational challenges facing the organisation;
- Reviewing of Management update and feedback on status of the organisational turnaround;
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
- Reviewed the annual financial statements during the meeting held on 30 May 2013 for recommendation to the
Accounting Officer.
- Reviewing the minutes of the last Audit and Risk Meeting to identify matters to follow up on;
- Understanding of and review of Internal Audit Function and significant matters in the Internal Audit Reports that
were issued during the year;
- Understanding of and reviewing significant matters contained in the Auditor-General of South Africa’s 2012
Management Report, 2012 External Audit Report and the 2013 Interim and Final Management Report;
- Working with and communicating with Internal Auditors and External Auditors;
- Exercise of oversight responsibility over financial reporting, risk and controls, reviewing financial
statements, regulatory and compliance issues;
- Reporting to the Board and CEO on key findings arising from its oversight responsibilities.
- Reviewed the following:
o
2013 draft financial statements;
o
Information technology report;
o
Risk committee management assessment;
o
Legal compliance and litigation report and;
o
Performance against predetermined objectives.
- Evaluated the effectiveness of the risk management and the internal controls system;
- Verified the independence of the external auditors and;
- Reviewed the terms of engagement and independence of the external auditors;
The current audit committee focus is to review various policies, and amendment thereto, for recommendation for
approval by the new Board once it has been appointed.

6. Evaluation of the annual financial statements
The Audit and Risk Committee wishes to indicate that it performed a review on the annual financial statements focussing on,
but not limiting to, the following:
- Significant financial reporting judgements and estimates contained in the annual financial statements;
- Clarity and completeness of disclosure and whether disclosures made have been set properly in context;
- Quality and acceptability of, and any changes, amendments in accounting policies and practices;
- Compliance with accounting standards and legal requirements
- Significant adjustments and/or unadjusted differences resulting from the audit;
- Reasons for major year-on-year fluctuations;
- Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure disclosures;
- Contingencies disclosures; and
-The basis for the going concern assumption.
The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements and Annual Performance
Information Report for the 2013 Financial Year for recommendation to the Accounting Officer:
o
Reviewed the 2013 annual financial statements during the meetings held on 21st May 2013 and 30th
of May 2013 for recommendation to the Accounting Officer.
o
Review the 2013 final management report and the 2013 audit report from the Auditor-General
These Annual Financial Statements were approved by the board of PanSALB on 31 July 2013

_______________________________
Mxolisi Zwane on behalf of the board

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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Statement of Financial Performance
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of books
Other income
Interest received

3
4
10

334
262
764

333
222
783

19
350

361

1,360

1,338

369

361

71,827
2,925

58,162
2,675

71,627
-

57,962
-

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

74,752

60,837

71,627

57,962

Total revenue

76,112

62,175

71,996

58,323

(46,531)
(8,332)
(1,312)
(44)
(118)
(74)
(23,232)

(38,657)
(9,555)
(1,704)
(224)
(21)
(10,024)

(31,973)
(6,770)
(1,090)
(44)
(118)
(54)
(14,792)
(21,330)

(24,617)
(7,807)
(1,480)
(224)
(5)
(13,155)
(8,044)

(79,643)

(60,185)

(76,171)

(55,332)

Operating (deficit) surplus
Loss on assets

(3,531)
(12)

1,990
(176)

(4,175)
(12)

2,991
(173)

(Deficit) surplus for the year

(3,543)

1,814

(4,187)

2,818

Attributable to:
PanSALB
NLUs

(4,187)
644

2,818
(1,004)

(4,187)
-

2,818
-

(3,543)

1,814

(4,187)

2,818

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies
Gifts, sponsorships and donations

Expenditure
Staff costs
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss
Finance costs
Repairs and maintenance
Transfers and subsidies paid
Other operating expenses
Total expenditure
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2013
Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Other financial assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other financial assets

11
12
13
16

14
15
16

Total Assets

806
751
946
7,596

390
722
866
6,459

632
251
-

339
352
-

10,099

8,437

883

691

3,277
493
248

4,342
543
177

2,473
440
-

3,385
442
-

4,018

5,062

2,913

3,827

14,117

13,499

3,796

4,518

9,168
427
237
196

4,498
744
474
236

8,213
427
237
-

3,767
744
474
-

10,028

5,952

8,877

4,985

4,989

427
4,390

-

427
-

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease obligations
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Bank overdraft

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligations
Retirement benefit obligation
Total Liabilities
Net Assets

17
18
30
11

18
19

4,989

4,817

-

427

15,017

10,769

8,877

5,412

2,730

(5,081)

(894)

(900)

Net Assets
PanSALB
Accumulated surplus

(5,081)

(894)

(5,081)

(894)

PanSALB
NLUs

(5,081)
4,181

(894)
3,624

(5,081)
-

(894)
-

2,730

(5,081)

(894)

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand thousand
PanSALB
Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments
Balance at 01 April 2011 as restated
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
NLUs surplus adjustment
Total changes

Accumulated
deficit

PanSALB

NLUs

Consolidated
net assets

(2,770)

(2,770)

-

(2,770)

(942)

(942)

-

(942)

(3,712)

(3,712)

-

(3,712)

2,818
-

2,818
-

2,818

2,818

644
(644)
-

3,462
(644)
2,818

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

(701)

(701)

-

(701)

(193)

(193)

-

(193)

Balance at 01 April 2012 as restated
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year
NLUs surplus adjustment

(894)

(894)

-

(894)

(4,187)
-

(4,187)
-

Total changes

(4,187)

(4,187)

-

(4,187)

Balance at 31 March 2013

(5,081)

(5,081)

-

(5,081)
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Cash Flow Statement
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Grants and transfers
Interest income
Other receipts

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs
Transfers and subsidies paid

71,795
764
3,340

58,538
783
3,475

71,590
350
19

58,338
361
-

75,899

62,796

71,959

58,699

(45,215)
(27,851)
(118)
-

(37,807)
(24,714)
(224)
-

(31,319)
(24,459)
(118)
(14,792)

(24,436)
(20,688)
(224)
(13,155)

(73,184)

(62,745)

(70,688)

(58,503)

20

2,715

51

14
15

(168)
(139)
(1,208)

(144)
(57)
(234)

(95)
(139)
-

(9)
-

(1,515)

(435)

(234)

(9)

Net finance lease movement

(744)

(593)

(744)

(593)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

456

(977)

293

(406)

Net cash flows from operating activities

1,271

196

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Increase in loans receivable
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand thousand

Reference

PanSALB
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Other income
Interest received - investment

-

-

-

19
350

19
350

-

-

-

369

369

Taxation revenue
Government grants & subsidies

69,480

-

69,480

71,627

2,147

Total revenue

69,480

-

69,480

71,996

2,516

Expenditure
Personnel

(30,000)

-

(30,000)

(31,973)

(950)

-

(950)

(6,770)

Total revenue from exchange
transactions

Note 27
Note 27

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Administration

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss/ Reversal of
impairments
Finance costs

-

-

-

(1,090)
(44)

(1,973) Key posts filled
as the result of
the
implementation
of turnaround
strategy
(5,820) Organisational
redesign
preparation
for five year
strategic plan &
of new
committees &
consultative
workshops
(1,090)
Note 27
(44)
Note 27

(120)

-

(120)

(118)

Repairs and maintenance

(58)

-

(58)

(54)

Grants and subsidies paid

(14,260)

-

(14,260)

(14,792)

General Expenses

(24,092)

-

(24,092)

(21,330)

Total expenditure

(69,480)

-

(69,480)

(76,171)

(6,691)

(4,175)

(4,175)

Operating deficit

-

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

-

-

Note 27

2 Hired / Leased
machines
4 General repairs
- door repairs,
car batteries
(532) Additional
NLUs transfers
(Xitsonga &
Sepedi)
2,762
Language
projects, ICT
and other
projects
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand thousand

70

Loss on disposal of assets and
liabilities

-

-

-

(12)

(12)

Deficit before taxation

-

-

-

(4,187)

(4,187)

Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

-

-

-

(4,187)

(4,187)
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Accounting Policies
The following are the principal accounting policies of the entity which are, in all material respects, consistent with those applied
in the previous year, except as otherwise indicated.

1.

Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards
Board and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act.
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP.
1.1 Currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rands since that is the currency in which the majority of the
entity’s transactions are made.
1.2 Revenue recognition
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrues to the entity directly in return for services rendered or
goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and
discounts.
Revenue from exchange transactions is only recognised once all of the following criteria have been satisfied:
a) The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
b) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and
c) It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods are passed to the
consumer.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions in which the entity received revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset, and there is no liability to
repay the amount.
Grants, transfers and donations
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet
the criteria for recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is
conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without
any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.
Conditions on transferred assets require that the entity either:
- Consume the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset as specified; or
- Return future economic benefits or service potential to the transferor in the event that the conditions are breached
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1.2

Revenue recognition (continued)

Royalties
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
1.3 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA
requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condoned before year
end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial
statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception
of updating the note to the financial statements.
Where irregular expenditure has been incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following
financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount
condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for
the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law.
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant
note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly
in the irregular expenditure register.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable
care been exercised.
1.4 Retirement benefit costs
The entity operates a defined contribution plan. The plan is generally funded by payments from the entity and employees.
Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plan are charged to the income statement in the year to which
they relate.
The cost of short-term employee benefits including salaries (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered,
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC provides for post-retirement medical and group life insurance
contributions in relation to current and retired employees. The expected costs of these benefits are accounted for by using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the expected costs of these benefits are accumulated over the service
lives of the employees. The valuation of this obligation is carried out by independent qualified actuaries at least once every
three years.
All actuarial gains and losses due to experience as well as adjustments to the original plan are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income over the average remaining service lives of employees.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment
Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price as well as other costs attributable to bringing
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent measurement – cost model
Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new
component. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic
benefits associated with the asset.
Depreciation and impairment
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives
Item
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fittings
Leased assets
Lease improvements
Books
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Average useful life
15 years
10 - 16 years
6 years
15 years
Lease period
5 – 20 years
Indefinite life
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1.6 Impairment of assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the economic entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial
return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a
commercial return.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less cost to sell, is the amount obtainable from the sale of anasset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.
The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually. It does this
by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every
year. If an intangible asset had initially been recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service
potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined using the following
approach.
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if
any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.6 Impairment of assets (continued)
Reversal of an impairment loss
The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an
impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual
value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
1.7 Leases as lessee
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the
remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability.
1.8 Intangible assets
An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:
is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,

either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or
arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate

from the economic entity or from other rights and obligations.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the economic entity; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
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1.8 Intangible assets (continued)
An intangible asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software licences: to 6 years

Useful life
2 - 6 years

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each
reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the
carrying amount of an item of an intangible asset is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service
amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.
Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service
potential expected from the usage of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
1.9 Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies are economic outflows in the form of cash to the Non Profit Companies situated at and administerd
PanSALB established these units to operate as non profit companies, and PanSALB shall allocate funds to these units for
the fulfilment of their functions.
1.10 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or incollectibility.
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.
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1.10

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or
group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of
similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably
estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use
the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is:
cash;

a residual interest of another entity; or

a contractual right to:

receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have
fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

are held for trading.
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1.10 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Loans to (from) economic entities include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow controlled entities, controlled entities,
joint ventures and associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
Loans to economic entities are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans from economic entities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets: loans and receivables and are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently carried at amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus interest, less
repayments and impairments. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at
year-end. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. Impairments are determined by discounting expected future cash flows to their present value.
Amounts that are receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current except in stances when
current assets are either realised, consumed or sold, as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are not expected
to be realised within twelve months of the reporting date.
An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance within operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against operating expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and borrowings. They are categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised
cost, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost which is the initial carrying amount,
less repayments, plus interest.
Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks (including call deposits). Cash equivalents are
short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks,
net of bank overdrafts. The entity categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets: loans and receivables.
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement
or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the economic entity’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.
Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions

Category
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Finance lease obligations
Payables from exchange transactions
Retirement benefit obligation
Bank overdraft
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1.10 Financial instruments (continued)
Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value].
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
Financial instruments at fair value.

Financial instruments at amortised cost.

Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.
Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.
Distributions to holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly to net assets, net of any related income tax
benefit [where applicable]. Transaction costs incurred on residual interests is accounted for as a deduction from net assets,
net of any related income tax benefit [where applicable].
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the
transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.11 Comparative information
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been
identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there is a change
in accounting estimate, the adjustment is made prospectively.
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1.12 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of the National Language Units (NLUs), which are
named in the notes to the financial statements, are Non-Profit Companies situated at and administered by the respective
universities in the nine provinces of South Africa and were consolidated according to GRAP 6.
Basis of consolidation
Consolidated annual financial statements are the annual financial statements of the economic entity presented as those of
a single entity.
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the controlling entity and all
controlled entities, including special purpose entities, which are controlled by the controlling entity.
CControl exists as per Section 8 (8) (c) of the PanSALB Act, which requires PanSALB to establish units to operate as
non-profit companies, and PanSALB shall allocate funds to the units for the fulfilment of their functions; provided that the
memorandum of incorporation of such units shall include the following principles:
(i) The unit is accountable to PanSALB for monies allocated to it.
(ii) The unit shall abide by the policies of PanSALB.
(iii) The unit shall adhere to the principles of promoting language development.
The annual financial statements of the controlling entity and its controlled entities used in the preparation of the
consolidated annual financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date.
Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial statements of the controlled entities to bring their accounting
policies in line with those of the controlling entity.
All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Minority interests in the net assets of the economic entity are identified and recognised separately from the controlling
entity's interest therein, and are recognised within net assets. Losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated controlled
entity may exceed the minority interest in the controlled entity’s net assets. The excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are allocated against the majority interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make an additional investment to cover the losses. If the controlled entity subsequently reports surpluses, such
surpluses are allocated to the majority interest until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the majority has
been recovered.
Minority interests in the surplus or deficit of the economic entity is separately disclosed.
1.13 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for:
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to the economic entity.
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1.13 Inventories (continued)
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are
distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
1.14 Events after the reporting date
If the entity receives information after the reporting date, but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, about
conditions that existed at the reporting date, it shall update disclosures that relate to these conditions, in the light of the new
information.
If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material the entity shall disclose the nature of the event and an estimate
of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.
1.15 Prepayments
Prepayments are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Annual Report for 2012-13 Financial Year - PanSALB

81

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Pan South African Language Board Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Accounting Policies
1.16 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the entity:
GRAP 18- Segment Reporting - issued February 2011. This new standard of GRAP: Establishes principles for reporting
financial information by segments. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of
this entity's operations and the enity is not required to apply this stand
GRAP 25- Employee Benefits – issued November 2009. This new standard of GRAP dealing with the requirements around
accounting and disclosure of employee benefits including short term, long term and post retirement employee benefits. The
impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
GRAP 20- Related Party Disclosures - Issued June 2011.This new standard of GRAP ensures that a reporting entity’s
financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and
surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances
with such parties.
GRAP 105- Transfer of Functions between entities under common control - Issued November 2010. This new standard of
GRAP establishes accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of functions between entities under
common control.
GRAP 106- Transfer of Functions between entities not under common control - Issued November 2010. This new standard
establishes accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not under common control.
GRAP 107- Mergers - Issued November 2010. This new standard establishes accounting principles for the combined entity
and combining entities in a merger.
Improvements to Standards of GRAP - Improvements are proposed to following standards of GRAP: GRAP 1-4, 9-14, 1617, 19 and 100 as part of the ASB's improvement project. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be
immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
The following GRAP standards were applied for the current financial year:
GRAP 24- Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements - issued November 2007. This new standard of
GRAP deals with the presentation and disclosure of budget information as required by GRAP 1. The impact of
implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
GRAP 26- Impairment of cash-generating assets - issued March 2009. This new standards of GRAP prescribes procedures
that an entity applies to determine whether a cash-generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are
recognised. The standard also specifies when an entity would reverse an impairment loss and prescribes disclosure. The
impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
GRAP 104- Financial Instruments - issued October 2009. The new standards of GRAP dealing with the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. The impact of implementing this standard is expected
to be immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
1.17 Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash) to another enity in exchange.
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1.18 Contingencies
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the
asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognised in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits or service potential has become probable, an entity
discloses the contingent asset.
A contingent liability is:
(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
1.19 Related parties
PanSALB operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa,
only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of PanSALB, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in
instances where they are required to perform such functions. PanSALB regards all individuals at senior management as
related parties per the definition of the financial reporting standards.
Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, management in their dealings with PanSALB.
1.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.
Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held
with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call
with banks.
1.21 Conditional grants and receipts
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.
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1.22 Budget information
Economic Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations
equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.
General purpose financial reporting by economic entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and
used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by functional classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2012 to 31/03/2013.
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

PanSALB

2013

2012

2013

2012

71,024
267

57,663
169

71,024
267

57,663
169

500
36
-

200
110
20

300
36
-

110
20

71,827

58,162

71,627

57,962

Book
CD-Rom
Dictionary

99
171
64

133
177
23

-

-

Total

334

333

-

-

Royalties
Administrative and reimbursive income
Income
Workshop facilitation

186
19
14
43

185
33
4

19
-

-

Total

262

222

19

-

Administration and management fees - third party
Auditor's remuneration

3,046
2,214

3,430
866

1,924
1,831

2,149
649

Auditor's remuneration - External audit fees
Auditor's remuneration - Internal audit fees

1,346
868

790
76

963
868

573
76

Board remuneration
Staff training and development
Bad debts written off
Legal fees

39
243
32
2,758

268
30
189
4,772

17
240
2,758

268
2
4,739

Total

8,332

9,555

6,770

7,807

2.

Government grants & subsidies

National Department - Arts and Culture
Provincial department - Sports, Art and Culture - Free
State (Conditional)
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumalanga
Statistics SA (Conditional)
Microsoft (Conditional)
MTN (Conditional)

3.

4.

5.

Sale of books

Other income

Administrative expenditure
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

2013

2012

2013

2012

Salaries

39,683

32,634

27,407

20,805

Basic
Acting allowances
Leave pay provision charge
Bonus

36,692
2,093
854
44

31,687
667
240
40

24,459
2,093
855
-

19,906
667
232
-

Employer social contributions

5,312

4,666

4,566

3,812

Medical aid
UIF
Provision for post-retirement employee benefit
Defined pension contribution plan

1,456
114
599
3,143

1,166
87
719
2,694

1,456
114
2,996

1,166
87
2,559

6.

Staff costs

Directors' remuneration - NLUs
Total
Number of staff members

7.

8.

1,536

1,357

-

-

46,531

38,657

31,973

24,617

-

-

88

72

Transfers and subsidies

Subsidies
National Lexicography Units (Note 25)

-

-

14,792

13,155

4,709
1,208
8,272
114
3,499
30
269
1,551
237
22
223
1,291
1,227
505

384
1,231
1,859
45
3,679
17
21
206
220
70
122
8
389
74
1,642
-

4,709
1,203
7,844
114
3,157
30
269
1,551
130
22
221
1,291
284
505

384
1,224
1,209
42
3,410
17
21
206
94
70
122
8
389
74
774
-

23,157

9,967

21,330

8,044

Other operating expenses

Co-operation with other bodies
Communications and marketing
Consulting and professional fees
Consumables
Lease rentals on operating lease
Lexicography Development
Linguistic Human Rights
National Language Bodies
Other expenses
Other project expenses
PanSALB awards
Project - Language in Education
Provincial Language Committees
Translation and Interpretion
Travel - local
Utilities - Other
Total
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

9.

PanSALB

2013

2012

2013

2012

118

224

118

224

764

783

350

361

Finance costs

Obligations under finance lease

10. Interest received
Bank deposits

11. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount
of these assets approximates to their fair value.
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposits
Bank overdraft
Total
Current assets
Current liabilities

2
674
130
(196)

3
369
18
(236)

1
501
130
-

2
319
18
-

610

154

632

339

806
(196)

390
(236)

632
-

339
-

610

154

632

339

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default
rates:
Credit rating
F2
F3

705
153

331
-

610
22

339
-

858

331

632

339

70

70

70

70

Finished goods

751

722

-

-

Opening balance
Additions – finished goods

722
29

696
26

-

-

Total

751

722

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral
Securities held by Absa bank on investment account
9094552911

12. Inventories
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Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB
2012

2013

2012

13. Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade debtors
Trade and other receivables (impairments)
Deposits
Other receivables
Prepayments
Royalties receivable

192
(26)
221
375
47
137

67
221
338
127
113

221
11
19
-

221
4
127
-

Total

946

866

251

352

The receivables are not considered to be impaired unless specifically provided for. The risk exposure of receivables has
been disclosed in note 22.
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB
2012

2013

2012

14. Property, plant and equipment
Consolidated

2013
Cost

2012

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Lease improvement / Books
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers

793
1,373
2,317
2,969
100
1,359
960

(416)
(726)
(1,806)
(1,518)
(89)
(1,200)
(839)

377
647
511
1,451
11
159
121

757
1,302
2,428
2,878
126
1,359
960

(316)
(551)
(1,707)
(1,332)
(114)
(929)
(519)

441
751
721
1,546
12
430
441

Total

9,871

(6,594)

3,277

9,810

(5,468)

4,342

PanSALB

2013
Cost

2012

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers

459
1,055
1,135
2,265
1,359
960

(201)
(522)
(839)
(1,159)
(1,200)
(839)

258
533
296
1,106
159
121

485
984
1,288
2,184
1,359
960

(179)
(379)
(856)
(1,013)
(929)
(519)

306
605
432
1,171
430
441

Total

7,233

(4,760)

2,473

7,260

(3,875)

3,385

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2013

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Lease improvement / Books
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers

Opening
balance
441
1,546
751
721
12
430
441
4,342

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

45
86
37
-

(12)
-

(84)
(178)
(104)
(219)
(1)
(271)
(320)

168

(12)

(1,177)

Impairment
loss
(25)
(3)
(16)
(44)

Total
377
1,451
647
511
11
159
121
3,277

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2012

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Lease improvements / Books
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers

Opening
balance
2,040
1,609
904
1,410
13
5,976
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Additions

Disposals

8
43
93
-

(32)
(8)
(136)
-

144

(176)

Transfers
(1,192)
701
491
-

Depreciation

Total

(383)
(98)
(153)
(646)
(1)
(271)
(50)

441
1,546
751
721
12
430
441

(1,602)

4,342
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - PanSALB - 2013

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers

Opening
balance
306
1,171
605
432
430
441
3,385

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

9
86
-

(12)
-

(32)
(148)
(72)
(108)
(271)
(320)

Impairment
loss
(25)
(3)
(16)
-

95

(12)

(951)

(44)

Total
258
1,106
533
296
159
121
2,473

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - PanSALB - 2012

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Leased switchboard
Leased photocopiers

Opening
balance
1,836
1,321
694
1,082
-

Additions

4,933

Disposals

Transfers

8
1
-

(32)
(4)
(137)
-

9

(173)

Depreciation

(1,192)
701
491
-

Total

(314)
(146)
(89)
(514)
(271)
(50)

306
1,171
605
432
430
441

(1,384)

3,385

The loss incurred on assets arose from office equipment that was stolen.

15. Intangible assets
Consolidated

2013
Cost

Computer software - licences

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
811

PanSALB

(318)

Cost

493

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
672

2013
Cost

Computer software - licences

2012

(267)

543

2012

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
707

(129)

Cost

440

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
568

(126)

442

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Consolidated - 2013

Computer software - licences

Opening
balance
543

Additions

Opening
balance
548

Additions

139

Amortisation

Total

(189)

493

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Consolidated - 2012

Computer software - licences

90
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2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

15. Intangible assets (continued)
Reconciliation of intangible assets - PanSALB - 2013

Computer software - licences

Opening
balance
442

Additions

Amortisation

139

Total

(141)

440

Reconciliation of intangible assets - PanSALB - 2012
Opening
Amortisation
balance
537
(95)

Computer software - licences

Total
442

16. Other financial assets
At amortised cost
Rhodes University
The loan is unsecured and there are no fixed terms of
repayment

424

431

-

-

2,482

2,344

-

-

367

376

-

-

Stellenbosch University
This loan is unsecured and not subject to any fixed
terms of repayment. Interest is calculated at a floating
rate linked to the prime overdraft rate. The rate at yearend was 4.90% (2012 : 5.20%)

4,102

3,118

-

-

University of Venda
The loan represents monies received by the university,
but not yet utilised by the TNLU. The loan bears no
interest and has no fixed repayment terms.

409

305

-

-

Tshwane University of Technology
The loan is unsecured and there are no fixed terms of
repayment.

60

62

-

-

7,844

6,636

-

-

248

177

-

-

7,596

6,459

-

-

University of Pretoria
The loan is unsercured and there are no fixed terms of
repayment.
University of Fort Hare
The loan is unsecured and bears interest at variable
rates. There are no fixed terms of repayment.

Non-current assets
At amortised cost
Current assets
At amortised cost
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2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

17. Payables from exchange transactions
Other payables
Accruals
Leave and bonuses
Operating lease payables
Trade payables

1,404
2,792
1,751
262
2,959

354
2,845
1,033
266
-

936
2,584
1,472
262
2,959

2,698
816
253
-

Total

9,168

4,498

8,213

3,767

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.
Leave and bonuses are classified as accruals in accordance with the policy adopted by PanSALB.

18. Finance lease obligations
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

448
-

799
448

448
-

799
448

less: future finance charges

448
(21)

1,247
(76)

448
(21)

1,247
(76)

Present value of minimum lease payments

427

1,171

427

1,171

Present value of minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

427
-

744
427

427
-

744
427

427

1,171

427

1,171

427

427
744

427

427
744

427

1,171

427

1,171

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

It is the entity’s policy to lease photocopiers and the switchboard under finance leases .
Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases escalate at 15% p.a. and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rent .
The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 14.
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Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

19. Employee benefit obligations
The Afrikaans NLU accounts for actuarially determined future medical and group life insurance benefits and provide for the
expected liability in the statement of financial position.
The most recent valuation was done on 31 March 2012. The next valuation will be done on or before 31 March 2015. A
medical cost inflation rate of 7.5% (2012: 7.5%) and a discount rate of 8.20% (2012: 7.50%) were assumed. The average
retirement age was set at 60 years (2012: 60 years).
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Opening balance
Current service cost
Past service costs
Interest cost
Acturial loss
Contributions
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(4,390)
(85)
9
(343)
(407)
227

(3,671)
(73)
9
(317)
(542)
204

-

-

(4,989)

(4,390)

-

-
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Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

20. Cash generated from operations
(Deficit) surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities
Impairment loss
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

(3,543)

1,814

(4,187)

2,818

1,312
12
44
599

1,704
176
719

1,090
12
44
-

1,480
173
-

(29)
(80)
4,637
(237)

(26)
62
(4,872)
474

101
4,448
(237)

(180)
(4,569)
474

2,715

51

1,271

196

21. Changes in accounting policy
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards.
GRAP 24 - Presentation of Budget information in Financial Statements

GRAP 24 - Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
During the year, the economic entity changed its accounting policy with respect to the presentation of budget information in
the financial statements. GRAP 24 requires the entity to present a comparisonof their financial statements between:
- last approved and final budget amounts;
- budget and actual amounts on a comaprable basis; and
- explanations of material differences between budget and actual amounts

22. Risk management
Maximum credit risk exposure
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and receivables. The entity only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Securities of R 70,000 are held by Absa bank on investment account 9094552911.
Management evaluates credit risk relating to receivables on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the debtor, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to
retail debtors are settled in cash or using major credit cards.
Exposure to credit risk

94

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Receivables – unrated
Cash and equivalents: F2 and F3 – rating

8,542
807

7,319
390

Total

9,349

7,709
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Figures in Rand thousand

22

2013

2012

PanSALB
2013

2012

Risk management (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets
The following analysis provides information about the entity’s exposure to credit risk:
Receivables
- Neither past due nor impaired
Neither past due nor impaired
Cash and equivalents
Neither past due nor impaired

8,542
-

7,319
-

807

390

Liquidity risk
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity
risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the maturities and contractual cash flows of other financial liabilities which have been undiscounted.
PanSALB
At 31 March 2013
Bank overdraft
Retirement benefit obligation
Finance lease
Payables

Within 1 year
236
427
9,067

1 to 5 years

Total

At 31 March 2012
Bank overdraft
Retirement benefit obligation
Finance lease
Payables

Within 1 year
196
744
4,493

1 to 5 years

Total

4,989
4,390
427
-

236
4,989
427
9,067
196
4,390
1,171
4,493

Interest rate risk
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

23. Consolidation
The entity exercises control over the National Lexicography Units mentioned in note 25. The financial results of these
enterprises have been consolidated into the financial statements of Pan South African Language Board.
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2013

2012

PanSALB
2013

2012

24. Contingencies
Litigation is in the process against the entity relating to a dispute with the former Chief Executive Officer. The entity's
lawyers and management consider the likelihood of the action amounting to R 3,200,000 against the entity being successful
as unlikely, and the case should be resolved within the next two years.
Litigation is in the process against the entity relating to a dispute with the former Senior Legal Advisor. The entity's lawyers
and management consider the likelihood of the action amounting to R 2,200,000 against the entity being successful as
unlikely, and the case should be resolved within the next two years.
Litigation is in the process against the entity relating to a dispute with PanSALB's attorneys. The entity's lawyers and
management consider the likelihood of the action amounting to R 1, 258,805. against the entity being successful as
unlikely, and the case should be resolved with the next two years..
Contingent assets
Civil proceedings have commenced against PanSALB's attorneys to recover an amount of R 1,635,170. According to
PanSALB's legal advisors, it is probable that the proceedings will result in the recovery of the full amount.
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2013

2012

PanSALB
2013

2012

25. Related parties
National Department – Arts and culture - Department within the same sphere of government
Provincial Department – Sports, arts and culture - Department within the same sphere of government
Provincial Department - Health - Department within the same sphere of governement
National Lexicography Units – non-profit entities receiving grants from PanSALB
Chief Executive Officer – member of key management
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – member of key management
Chief Financial Officer – member of key management
Directors – members of key management
Related party balances
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Provincial Department - Sports, Arts and Culture - Free State
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumalanga

-

146

104

100

71,108
267
300

57,663
169
-

71,675

57,832

1,536

1,357

1,319
1,319
1,319
1,319
1,319
1,319
1,512
1,319
1,319
1,319
1,409

1,183
1,183
1,183
1,183
1,183
1,183
1,325
1,183
1,183
1,183
1,183

14,792

13,155

Related party transactions
Grants received from related parties
National Department – Arts and Culture
Provincial Department – Sports, Arts and Culture - Free State
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumulanga

Remuneration
Directors remuneration - NLUs
Transfers and subsidies paid to the National Lexicography Units
National Lexicography Units
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC
Dictionary Unit for South African English NPC
Iziko Lesihlathululi-Mezwi Sesindebele NPC
Isixhosa National Lexicography Unit
Isikhungo Sesichazamazwi Sesizulu
Sesiu sa Sesotho Lexicography Unit NPC
Sesotho Sa Leboa Dictionary Unit NPC
Setswana National Lexicography Unit NPC
Silulu Sesiswati Lexicography Unit NPC
Tshivenda National Lexicography Unit NPC
Xitsonga National Lexicography Unit NPC
Total
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

PanSALB

2013

2012

2013

2012

Salary

Other
benefits
199

25. Related parties (continued)
Senior Management remuneration 2013

Caretaker Chief Executive Officer - M Zwane
(Appointed June 2012)

655

Expense
allowances
82

Acting Chief Executive Officer - SP Nkosi (April 2012 June 2012)

123

41

32

196

Deputy Chief Executive Officer - CL Swepu (Contract
terminated in November 2012)

638

48

19

705

Chief Financial Officer - M Myambo (Appointed July
2012)

383

152

91

626

Acting Chief Financial Officer - AV Mbilini (April 2012 June 2012)

116

9

48

173

Executive Head - Languages - N Jafta (Appointed
September 2012)

319

-

213

532

Executive Head - Corporates Services - K Mbele
(Appointed July 2012)

379

152

91

622

Acting Executive Head - Languages - A Netshiheni
(April 2012 - June 2012)

122

49

6

177

2,735

533

699

3,967

331

Expense
allowances
25

Other
benefits
162

586
462
449
449
451
443

148
81
108
51
199
177

244
220
279
175
101
113

978
763
836
675
751
733

3,171

789

1,294

5,254

Total

Total
936

Senior Management remuneration 2012
Salary
Chief Executive Officer – NR Nkosi (Contract
terminated in February 2012)
Deputy Chief Executive Officer – CL Swepu
Chief Financial Officer – L Sing
Acting Executive Head - Corporate Services - SP Nkosi
Managers - PLCs - IS Molosankwe
Senior Legal Advisor - Z Feni
Manager - NLUs - N Ndabezitha
Total

26. Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance
Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance.
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand
Net (deficit) surplus per the statement of financial performance
Adjusted for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Loss on sale of assets
Finance costs
Finance lease payments
Capital assets purchased
Operating lease accrual
Interest received
Other income received
Administrative and other operating expenses variance
Staff costs variance
Transfers and subsidies variance
Prepayments
Deposits paid
Government grants and subsidies
Total

2013

2012

PanSALB
2013

2012

(4,187)

2,818

1,134
12
118
(862)
(95)
9
350
19
3,226
(1,981)
232
(18)
1,942

1,480
173
224
(817)
(9)
83
361
(1,038)
(1,380)
132
(127)
(57)
(1,843)

(101)

-

27. Events after the reporting date
The entity is not aware of any events after the reporting date, which will have an effect on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013.
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

28. Impairment of financial assets
Except as disclosed in the annual financial statements, the entity is not aware of any other events or circumstances, which
will result in the impairment of financial assets for the year ended 31 March 2013.

29. Key sources of estimate uncertainty and judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:
The determination of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment; and intangible assets with finite
useful lives. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition,
expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use and the entity’s expectations about
the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating the how the condition and use of the
asset informs the useful life and residual value management considers the impact of technology and minimum service
requirements of the assets.
The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred,
estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.
Provisions were recognised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.
Contingencies recognised require estimates and judgements made by management and is normally the amount that the
entity would rationally pay to settle the obligation or to transfer it to a third party at thereporting date. Management's
judgements are based on similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts. Any events after the
reporting date are considered and, where relevant, included.

30. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Provincial Department - Sports, Arts and Culture - Free
State
Microsoft SA
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumalanga
Statistics SA

100
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146

-

146

228
9

228
100
-

228
9

228
100
-

237

474

237

474
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

31. Prior period errors
The following errors identified have been corrrected restrospectively and the comparative figures have been restated
accordingly:
- Errors were identified in the change in accounting estimate calculation performed on the 31 March 2012 for certain items
of computer equipment and computer software belonging to PanSALB whose useful lives exceeded 6 years.
- Accruals for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 were incomplete for PanSALB when certain expenditure
items were recorded on the actual payment date instead of the date when goods were supplied or the services rendered
- In February 2012 the employee cost of Isixhosa NLU were recorded, paid for and accrued for in the 2012 financial year
and certain assets were not correctly recorded.
- Dictionary sales, assets written off and finance income for the year ended 31 March 2012 for Sesiswati NLU were not
recorded and management fee was not recorded for both 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.
-Cost of dictionaries was disclosed as operating expenses for both Sesiswati NLU and Afrikaans NLU.
- Other financial assets for Tshivenda NLU has been reclassified to current assets.
- Aligning the PPE accounting policies of the NLUs to that of PanSALB
- Funds administered by the respective Universitities were reclassified as financial assets instead of cash and cash
equivalents
Software was reclassified from Property, plant and equipment to intangible assets
The total net effect of the prior period error(s) is as follows:
Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Trade and other receivables from exchange
Other financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Payables from exchange transactions
NLUs suplus adjustment
Accumulated deficit - 31 March 2011

-

(155)
6
34
339
723
50
292
898
942

-

27
36
1
258
942

Statement of Financial Performance
Sales of books
Other income
Interest received
Cost of sales
Staff costs
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenses
Loss on assets
NLUs deficit adjustment

-

23
7
6
(51)
(102)
(252)
(46)
1
(880)
3
(88)

-

(225)
(37)
(937)
-

32. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2013, the entity had accumulated deficits of R 5, 081,000 and that the entity's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R 5, 081,000.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The
entity has committed funds from National Treasury for the following 3 years. Management embarked on a strategic
planning exercise and developed a fundraising strategy resulting in cost savings thus ensuring that all liabilities are settled
when due.
The entity will also continue providing the NLUs with funding from its committed funds in accordance with the PanSALB Act.
The NLUs have embarked on a cost saving exercise to ensure that all their liabilities are settled when due.
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Economic entity
Figures in Rand thousand

2013

PanSALB

2012

2013

2012

33. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
R 240 of penalties were incurred on the late payment of motor vehicle licencing fees. On further investigation it was
discovered that this was as result of the late receipt of correspondence when the SA Post Office was experiencing strike
action and no further disciplinary steps were taken.

34. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year

-

-

8,287
6,589

3,088
5,199

-

-

14,876

8,287

-

-

8,287
6,589

5,199
3,088

-

-

14,876

8,287

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year
Prior years

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Irregular expenditure incurred as a result of
institutions procuring goods or services by
means other than through competitive bids and
where reasons for deviating from inviting
competitive bids have not been recorded and
approved by the accounting officer or accounting
authority. (Contravention of Treasury Regulation
16A6.4)

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
All matters above have been investigated and the
expenditure was incurred as a result of the Institution
being placed under administration subsequent to the
disbandment of the Board in June 2013. Steps have
been taken to rectify the irregularity and re-apply for
condonation.

6,589

Details of irregular expenditure for the current year (not condoned)
Organizational re-designing and Turnaround
strategy
Conference and banqueting- turnaround strategy
workshop
Travel and subsistence for delegates attending
strategic workshop
Corporate regalia & clothing for delegates
attending the strategic workshop
Scribe for the workshop
Catering for the consultative workshop with staff

6,196
239
95
50
8
1
6,589

35. Deviation from supply chain management regulations
Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management
policy must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.
Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
accounting authority and includes a note to the annual financial statements.
Buses and gym equipment were procured during the financial year under review and the process followed in procuring
those goods deviated from the provisions of paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) as stated above. The reasons for these deviations were
documented and reported to the accounting authority who considered them and subsequently approved the deviation from
the normal supply chain management regulations.
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as at 31 March 2013

Board remumeration
List of Board members

2013
PanSALB

Prof S Ngubane
Ms M Sadiki
Mr B Druchen
Ms G Gumede
Adv M Mdludlu
Mr O Thenga
Mr R Mnisi

2012
PanSALB

Prof S Ngubane
Ms M Sadiki
Dr E Malete
Mr B Druchen
Prof Z Motsa
Ms P Sobahle
Ms G Gumede
Adv M Mdludlu
Prof M Mojalefa

Earnings

Travel
Expenses

Sitting
fees

Total

'000

'000

'000

'000

Number
of
meetings
attended

3
3
2
4
4
6
-

3
-

1
1
1
1
1
-

4
6
3
5
5
7
-

1
1
2
2
2
1

22

3

5

30

-

70
73
24
22
13
13
23
28
2

-

-

70
73
24
22
13
13
23
28
2

3
3
2
3
2
2
3
2
1

268

-

-

268

-

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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The board members were appointed on the 18th of July 2008 and resigned on the 13th of June 2012 when the board was
disbanded and the Caretaker CEO appointed.
The following directors were appointed for both years ending 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 at the undermentioned
NLUs:
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC
- Prof. A Schoonwinkel (Chairman (appointed 1 November 2012)
- Dr W.F. Botha
- Dr L.E. Combrink
- Prof. L.G. de Stadler
- Prof. M. Fourie-Malherbe (resigned on 30 September 2012)
- Prof. R.H. Gouws
- Mr H.A.J. Lombard
- Dr. M. Pienaar
- Mr R.A. Stevens
Dictionary Unit for South African English NPC
- S.E.H Driver
- M.M. Hackley
- V.A. de Klerk
- T.L Amos
- R.D. Adendorff
- M. Hendricks
- R.H. Kaschula
- A. Whittington-Jones
-J.D. Linnegar
- E.J. Wolvaart
Iziko Lesihlathululi-Mezwi Sesindebele NPC
- Mr. P.J. Masilela (Chairperson)
- Mr. D.S. Masanabo (Deputy Chairperson)
- Mr. L.T. Mnguni
- Mr. J. Mthimunye
- Mr. P.G. Mabena
- Mr. V.S. Ndala
- Ms. K.S. Mahlangu (Ex-officio member
Isixhosa National Lexicography Unit
- Dr. M. Jadezweni (Chairperson)
- Dr. P.N. Mkonto
- Prof. D.N Jafta
- Dr. O.S. Dzingwa
- Mr. M. Tanda
- Dr. S.S. Mdaka
- Ms. N. Tyolwana
- Dr. T. Nsthinga
Isikhungo Sesichazamazwi Sesizulu NPC
- Justice S.J. Ngwenya (Chairman)
- Mr. M.A. Simelane (Financial Officer)
- Prof. A.M Maphumulo
- Dr. M.O. Mtshali
- Mr. B.N. Mchunu
- Ms. L. Makhubu (Secretary)
- Mr. M. Mbatha (CEO and Editor in Chief)
- Ms. L. Mahonga
- T.R.G Ntombela
- Mr. N.M. Dubazane
- Ms. T. Dlamini
Sesiu sa Sesotho Lexicography Unit NPC
- Prof. M.A. Molekei
- Prof. H.M. Thipa
- Mr. C.M. Mahase
- Mr. M.J. Motsapi
The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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Sesotho Sa Leboa Dictionary Unit NPC
- Dr. S.J. Chokoe
- Mrs. K.M. Makgopa
- Ms. M.K. Malepe
- Dr. M.V. Mojela
- Dr. D.N. Lekganyane
- Dr. S. Mogale
- Mr. S.J Dolamo
- Mr J.R. Matlala
- Mr. B. Lepota
- Dr. L.P. Boshego
Setswana National Lexicography Unit NPC
- N.J. Phalatse (Chairperson)
- D.J. Molefe (Deputy)
- G.B Mareme (Editor in Chief)
- R.D. Paadi
- B.D. Sebolao
- D.A. Molope
- K.M.A Thelebi
- K.A. Mhlongo
Silulu Sesiwati Lexicography Unit NPC
- P.M. Lubisi
- A.D. Shongwe
- J.J. Thwala
- P. Nxumalo- Lithulu
- B.V. Mbungela
- L.R. Ntsane
- O.A. Bhiya (appointed on 1 November 2012)
Tshivenda Naltional Lexicography Unit NPC
- Prof. M.J Mafela
- Adv. K.S. Negota
- Mr. S.L. Thsikota
- Prof. N.M. Musehane
- Mr. T.E. Maphangwa
- Dr. I.P. Demana
- Mr. N.C. Netshisaulu
- Mr. A.S. Tshithuke
Xitsonga National Lexicography Unit
- Mrs. N.C. Shilote (Chairperson)
- Mr. M.J. Baloyi (Deputy Chairperson)
- Mr. M.J Hlongwe
- Mrs. M.L. Bilankulu
- Mr. S.E. Mushwana
- Mr. X.E. Mabaso
- Mr. S.W.T. Machumele
- Prof. N.C.P. Golele
- Mr. H.T. Mashele (Executive Director)
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Contact Details
Head Office
Private Bag X08, Arcadia, 0007
5th Floor, Provisus Building, 523 Stanza Bopape Street, Arcadia, 0083
Tel: (012) 341 9638/9651 Fax: (012) 341 5938 Email: communication@pansalb.org.za

Provinces
Eastern Cape

Shop 11B, New Colonnade, Devereux Avenue, Vincent, EAST LONDON, 5201
Tel: (043) 726 2600 Fax: (043) 721 3379

Free State

Shop 102-104, 1st Floor, Sanlam Plaza, Cnr East Burger & Maitland Str,
BLOEMFONTEIN, 9301
Tel: (051) 448 2308/2300 Fax: (051) 448 3189

Gauteng

Ground Floor, Office No.1, Pretoria Sanwood Park, 379 Queens Crescent,
Lynnwood, PRETORIA, 0081
Tel: (012) 361 7117 Fax: (012) 361 6116

KwaZulu-Natal

Suite 402, 4th Floor, 320 West Street, DURBAN, 4001
Tel: (031) 304 5621/5631 Fax: (031) 304 5634

Limpopo

Library Gardens, Office No.104, Cnr Schoeman & Grobler Str, POLOKWANE, 0699
Tel: (015) 291 5888/5898 Fax: (015) 291 5898

Mpumalanga

Hi Tech House, 1st Floor, 200 Botha Street, Cnr Botha & Rhodes Str, WITBANK, 1034
Tel: (013) 656 0307 Fax: (013) 656 0361

Northern Cape

24-28 DuToitspan Rd, Flaxley House, KIMBERLEY, 8301
Tel: (053) 832 0037/2293 Fax: (053) 832 1280

North West

Mega City Shopping Complex, Suite 11OA, Eastern Gallery, MMABATHO, 2790
Tel: (018) 384 0120/0123 Fax: (018) 384 0122

Western Cape

9 Adderley Street, Golden Acre Towers, 12th Floor, Office 1201A, CAPE TOWN, 8001
Tel: (021) 421 8506 Fax: (021) 425 2399

RP218/2013
ISBN: 978-0-621-42073-9

www.pansalb.org.za

